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ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUl (C.c. No. 07-29)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. . (gavel) . .. I'd like to call the order of the Council's Budget and
Finance Committee, meeting for April the 3fd , 2007 at the Kahului Community Center.
Good evening, everyone. Thank you for having us here this evening. At this time, I'd
like to yield the floor to Councilmember Mike Victorino who will introduce the Members
that are here tonight. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thauk you, Chair. Good evening, ladies and gentlemen,
and thauk you for coming. I would like to start from my far right. Representing the
Upcountry district, and many of you know her as the fonner MEO Director. .. this
beautiful young lady, Ms. Gladys Baisa.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeab, Mike!
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Next to her, the handsome one from the east end of the
island--and I found out "east end" in parks is not the east end as in other departments, so I
gotta figure that one out, too, but that's okay. From the east end, out from beautiful Hana
and Kipabulu and all that area, the handsome one, Mr. Bill John Medeiros.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mabalo.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To my far left. .. or my near left, actually, this beautiful
young lady represents the west part, West Maui ... part of the island, comes all the way in
from Labaina everyday, fights the traffic, so whenever we have traffic woes, she knows
firsthand what she's talking about--none other than, Ms. Jo Anne Johnson.
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AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To my... right, this handsome young man is from the
Makawao-Haiku section of the island of Maui, Maui County. This young man was a
teacher, good looking, very--he can sing well, you know, he can sing every well. So after
we get through, we going sing a few songs with him--Mr. Mike Molina.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause). ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORlNO: And of course, we cannot forget the good-looking,
handsome Filipino gentleman from Kahului district-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Whew!
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORlNO: --none other than Mr. Joe Pontanilla.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mike. He should do all the introductions as we go to the
different. .. communities. Thank you very much.
· .. Tonight. .. all of you here have an opportunity to provide us with comments on the
Mayor's proposed Fiscal Year 2008 Budget that was presented to the Council on
April the 15 th •
· .. Before we go into public testimony, I'd like to remind everybody to tum off your cell
phones or put it on the silent mode. And if you have old technology, the pagers ...turn it
off. .. (laughter). .. Thank you.
· .. Members, of the community, it is our pleasure to be here tonight to receive your
testimony regards to the different organizations that you represent here in Maui County.
Again, the County Council is going through the different communities. And as we go
through the different communities, we finding more and more people turning out because
it's either we have a new Administration or they just love the Budget and Finance
Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORlNO: .. . (laughter} ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So I figure it's the Budget and Finance Committee that everybody
loves. So with that. . .I'd like to start off the public testimony.
· .. Before I start .. .I, I know some of you came out early to sigu up to provide public
testimony, but we have a lot of kids that are here tonight. .. and get school tomorrow. So
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if there's objections to the Members or the people that came out and signed up early, in
having the Chairman take care of the kids first so that they can go home and do their
homework-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there any objections to that?
AUDIENCE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ah ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... thank you.
NOTE:

Pause while the Chair reviewed and rearranged the order of testimony forms .

. . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... The first group that I'd like to call is the Boys and Girls Club of
Maui. I'd like to call up to the podium, Heidi Kalehuawehe ...
· .. Shayna Elizares, Melissa Francis ... Taylor Kalehuawehe ...
· .. Dyllan Cabiles, BetheL ..Bethel Cabiles ...
· .. Connie ...Rollin?
MS. KALEHUAWEHE: Connie Brown.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Kawena Chong... Leka... Lelsa... Pauta, Zachary Akima, and
Dallas Finley. Before you testify, though, the Chair would like to remind you that you
have three minutes to testify, with one minute to conclude. So at this time, I'd like to call
on the first testifier. And if you can identify yourself and the organization that you
represent? Thank you.
MS. KALEHUAWEHE: ... Aloha and good evening, Maui County CounciL My name is
Heidi Kalehuawehe, Unit Director for Boys and Girls Club in Paukukalo. The staff and I,
along with the parents and members, would like to thank you for supporting the Boys and
Girls Club. The members of our Club comes from different schools and different parts
around the island. Our site has gained a lot of community support, also our programs
have been running really strong--Power Hour, sports, Girls Club, community service, and
arts and crafts. I would like to commend the volunteers who come out to support our
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program, which are the sports program, which get really stronger every year. Also, to a
lot of the outside agencies who share information about their agencies with our members.
Thank you for supporting MEO transportation... and... thank you, MEO transportation
for supporting our kids and bringing them to the different sites on Maui. And we would
like to thank you for giving us this opportunity. Please keep supporting the Boys and
Girls Club ofMaui ... as well as the other sites.
NOTE:

Pause while Master Francis approached.

MASTER FRANCIS: ... Good evening... Maui County Councils [sic]. I am Mika Francis, and
I am 10 years old, and I attend Lihikai SchooL After school, I catch the MEO bus to the
Boys and Girls Club in Paukukalo with my two sisters. I like going to the Boys and Girls
Club because it gives me and my two sisters a place to be at and a club that is ours. The
Club has so many things for us to do. We like to go there to play sports and watch
movies and join in on the other programs they run. Aunty Heidi and the staff takes really
good care of us. Please keep supporting the Boys and Girls Club. Thank you.
MISS

KALEHUAWEHE:
Good evening, Maui County CounciL
My name is
Taylor Kalehuawehe, and I am 11 years old, and I go to the Kahului, I go Kahului
SchooL I go to the Boys and Girls Club in Paukukalo where I can be close to my mom,
who runs the Club and programs. I go to the Boys and Girls Club to have fun and to
make friends and to get help .. .I need in my homework to better my education. I even go
there because it's safe and there's a lot of incredible things to do. Please keep supporting
the Boys and Girls Club. Thank you.

MISS ELIZARES: ... Good evening, Maui County CounciL My name is Shayna Elizares. I'm
10 years old and I go to Lihikai SchooL The reason I go to Boys and Girls Club is
because I have no where else to go after schooL So my mom joined me and my brother
there just because ... she heard how good the programs were, and that it would be ... and
that it would keep me and my brother company while they're at work and they wouldn't
have anything to worry about, especially us being at the Club. Keep supporting the Boys
and Girls Club. Thank you.
MASTER CABILES: ... Good evening, Maui County CounciL My name is Dyllan Cabiles,
and I am 8 years old, and I go to Wailuku Elementary SchooL I go to the Boys and Girls
Club because it's a place where I can go that my mom don't have to worry about me. I
get to meet lots of new friends that are really nice to me and always play with me. Please
keep supporting our Club. Thank you.
MS. CABILES: Aloha, Maui County CounciL I am Bethel Cabiles. And I'm not going to tell
you how old I am ... {laughter} . ..
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Awe ...
MS. CABILES: .. . (laughter). .. but I would just like to acknowledge ... and thank you and
applaud you for your support of the Boys and Girls Club. I know I speak for more than
just myself, for many parents who find themselves in ajob that goes 'til 5 o'clock in the
evening. This is a place where I know my children are safe, where they actually have
assistance in their homework so that in the evening all I have to do is go over it with
them. I applaud that you are supporting this group--because I know that my children
have met friends, they have gone on community outings to outreach programs, and have
met several people in the community now because of that. I really appreciate it, and I ask
you to continue to this funding. Mahalo and aloha.
MS. BROWN: ... Aloha, Maui County Council Members. I am Connie Brown, Unit Director
for the Central Boys and Girls Club and also for the Kahekili Outreach Program site.
Speaking behalf, on behalf of Kahekili tonight is my Youth Development Specialist,
Kawena Chong.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Chong approached.

MISS CHONG: ... Aloha and good evening. My name is Kawena Chong, and I work at the
Boys and Girls Club at Kahekili Terrace, which is in Wailuku. I currently have
33 members .
. . . One of the programs I run is Power Hour. During Power Hour, also known as
homework time, we normally have 100 percent participation from the Club
members--whether it's finishing up their homework or reading. Computers are also
available for homework. For those who do not have homework, they have a choice to
answer the question of the day or read for half-an-hour. When our homework and
reading is done, they have the opportunity to buy a snack from the snack bar or go on the
computers to play games that are approved by the Boys and Girls Club, surf the internet,
and listen to music.
NOTE:

Pause while Miss Pauta approached.

MISS PAUTA: ... Aloha, my name is Leka Pauta. I'm 14 years old and I'm a proud member
of the Boys and Girls Club at Kalekili [sic] Terrace. To me, the Boys and Girls Club
means that I come here and feel safe. I get--wait, I can get help on my homework when I
need it. Sometimes we go ... sometimes we play games or go on field trips to the
movies ... or to another club to meet new people. We also get to go on the computer to
do homework and games. We also have rules to follow. I enjoy being at the Boys and
Girls Club.
NOTE:

Pause while Master Akima approached.
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MASTER AKIMA: ... Hi, my name is Zachary Akima. I am 10 years old and belong to the
Boys and Girls Club at Kahekili. To me, Boys and Girls Club is fun because I can do my
homework inside and get the help I need. Our. .. on our free time, we get to watch
movies that are appropriate for our game ... ages. We also get to read books, do art and
crafts, sports, and go on field trips. That's why I like the Boys and Girls Club.
MASTER FINLEY: ... Aloha, I'm Dallas Finley. I am 11 years old and a member of the Boys
and Girls Club at Kahekili Terrace. What Boys and Girls Club means to me? The Boys
and Girls Club means that we sign in; have fun activities; food ... snack from the snack
bar; nice staff; and rules for us to abide... abide by so I can learn how to follow
directions. We also have the opportunity to work in snack bar where we learn math and
responsibility. Not only that, but we learn how to read and write. If we don't have
homework, we read and, or answer the question of the day. A lot of us don't have a
computer at home, but we have ... an opportunity to go on the computer at the Boys and
Girls Club. Aunty Kawena makes sure that don't, that we don't do things we should not
do. For that and many reasons, thank you for. .. for your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess ... Ms. Brown.
MS. BROWN: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Come .
. . . Ms. Brown-MS. BROWN: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --thank you very much. And I thank all of you. I know
you do a wonderful job, but in particular, Kahekili Terrace-MS. BROWN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know ... the young boy just mentioned and I know
this is ... this to be true, that many of these homes do not have access to computer,
internet and all that. And by giving them that chance, I think, really helps them. Have
you found them being able to do their homework with a Power Hour like you guys said,
and everything is focused ... and use of the computer has helped them with their
self-esteem, you know, with their confident level as far as going to school?
MS. BROWN: We believe it has. With the fact that during Power Hour time at Kahekili
Terrace, Kawena completely closes it down and 100 percent participation is expected
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during homework time. So it's quiet, it's peaceful, the kids have time to ask questions.
And we have noticed that their grades has improved--because we do have them bring in
their report cards so we can check it just to make sure. So it's a big impact.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Kawena, come, please, if I may? Kawena ...when
you close the place down for one hour, the Power Hour-MS. CHONG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --okay, do you find resistance from the children or are they
very acceptable to that and all willing to follow the rules? 'Cause I've heard that also
from a number of--that rules are set and they need to follow and they appreciate that
because sometimes they really need that kind of guidance.
MS. CHONG: All of our kids, they actually love to do their homework because they wauna
better themselves ... because they know what's going around in their community.
So ...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Mr. Chair, I truly appreciate it.

Thank you, Kawena.

I appreciate it.

Thank you,

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Urn ... testing ...
. . . Hello?
... Yes, I'm familiar with the Paukukalo site ... because I had grandchildren that are
there. But for the Kahekili site, being that you're, you're right in that. .. that area, that
residential area and being that you're there and you have these children participating in
your program, does that encourage other children that are in the area that are not part of
the program to think about joining?
MS. BROWN: Yes, we try to make sure no matter who comes to the door, they're welcome to
the Boys and Girls Club. So we have had some students that do come in that are not
living in that particular community, and we welcome that because that's what we're there
for.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do the parents have to enroll them?
MS. BROWN: Yes, they do-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Or can, can they come and join on their own?

-9-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 3, 2007
Kahului Community Center, Main Hall

MS. BROWN: The parents pick up a Boys and Girls Club packet and they fill that out and
return it to the Club, and then the kids are members. And, of course, for that particular
site, the membership is free. So all they have to do is fill it out, drop it off, and Kawena
signs them up.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
testified.

And thank you for all the youngsters that

MS. BROWN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Members, any more questions? If not, I wanna thank the Boys and
Girls Club for being here tonight.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... The next testifiers are Rachelle Quinn ... and Leslie Ramos .
. . . Rachelle Quinn, Leslie Ramos?
NOTE:

Long pause while Ms. Quinn and Miss Ramos approached the podium.

MS. QUINN, FROM THE AUDIENCE: ... We're coming.
. . . Good evening. Hi.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Quinn continued to approach.

MS. QUINN: ... My name is Rachelle Quinn, and I am the Project Manager of the Focus Maui
Nui Youth Alliance, which is a project of Maui Economic Development Board. This is
our second year. This year, we have 33 members ... 20 of them continued over from last
year. Only 2 didn't continue over 'cause they were seniors and just felt like they had too
much going on. We have 8 off-island members, 4 from Molokai and 4 from Lanai. And
the goal of the Youth Alliance is to educate the members in a way that is fun, interactive
and at no cost to them. We tour a different feature one Saturday of the month, and we try
to teach them about the environment, economy, infrastructure, human needs, and local
culture. This is an opportunity for these members to explore features that I feel like if
they weren't in the program they wouldn't go to. This past Saturday, we went to the Alii
Kula Lavender Farm. We had 17 members attend, and it was the first time that any of the
members had been there. So that was pretty empowering to see that they can have
opportunities in agriculture when they get older, and learn how to run a business. They
learned a lot about cooperation and team work. And they said it was their favorite visit of
the day. They were outside, they got to pick up the flowers and smell them. And .. .it's
really fun and interactive, so we don't want it to be like school for them, which like.. .it's
a volunteer opportunity. So .. .it's, we have to get creative that keeps them engaged. We
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also take them off island. Last year, we went to Lanai for an overnight stay and did an
urban land planning exercise. We also toured the dry forest to teach them about invasive
species. So this year, we're gonna do an overnight stay on Molokai so they can explore
that island as welL And for the majority of the members, it'll be their first time going to
Molokai. So they're really excited. So we'd just like to say thank you for your continued
support. And I'd like to introduce Leslie Ramos, who's a member. And she's gonna tell
you a little bit about her experience. Thank you.
MISS RAMOS: ... Hi, I'm Leslie Ramos. I'm a sophomore at King Kekaulike High SchooL
I'm a member of the Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance. And I joined the Youth Alliance
because I thought it would look good on my college application and for my future as
welL At one of the sessions we went to, I got to visit The Maui News and we interviewed
Mike Maberry. He's from the UH Institute of Astronomy. He talked about and he
explained about how dust particles affect, like, the view of the telescope. And I leamed
about why they choose Haleakala as the location for the telescope that they intend on
building. I'm glad that I joined this because it's pretty fun to be going to, like, every
meeting and we learn, like, new and interesting things every time we go. And you get to
meet new people from, like, all over the island and other islands as welL So I just wanted
to say thank you for your continued support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
... Excuse me, Rachelle?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Leslie?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Leslie? We got questions for you.
MS. RAMOS: Oh ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. Leslie, in both of the .. .little presentations by
both yourself and Rachelle, you mentioned that you are members of the Focus Maui Nui
Youth Alliance. Can you tell us ... that's under the auspicious of what agency and how is
this program funded?
MS. QUINN: I'm actually the Project Manager, I'm not a member. It's a project of Maui
Economic Development Board. And it's funded through County support and grants that
we receive. And MEDB gets support from State and Federal government as well. So we
try to write grants. And then, when we have our hosts for the day, they pretty much
provide the staffing for the day. And then, they also, for the most part, supply lunch and
snacks ... for the kids. So it's pretty much ...that end of it is taken care of by...we get a
lot of community support.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MS. QUINN: Yes, thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Any more questions, Members?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next set oftestifiers are Aaron Guerrero and Arianna Kapoi.
NOTE:

Long pause while Master Guerrero and Miss Kapoi approached the podium.

MASTER GUERRERO: ... Hello. My name is Aaron Guerrero. I am 17 years old. And I'm
talking about the MEO Youth Bank. I've been in it for seven years. And I'm a senior
citizen member.
ALL: .. . {laughter} . ..
MASTER GUERRERO: See, I have white hair.
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
MASTER GUERRERO: ... (laughter) . .. And I did my senior project for Kamehameha Schools
about this program. And I made a commercial for it, too, which is hopefully gonna be on
Akaku. And during the seven years that I've been in it, the County Council has always
supported us ...helped us out with the whole MEO everything. And I hope you guys will
help support this program. Few, like in the future 'cause my little brother, he just joined.
That's him.
NOTE:

Master Alex Guerrero waved.

ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
MASTER GUERRERO: .. .(laughter) . .. He's like a mini me. And-ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
MASTER GUERRERO: ... (laughter) . .. So I, just please ... and support the transportation
program 'cause they help us get around to places that the program goes to. So thank you.
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MISS KAPO!: ... Hi, I'm Arianna Kapoi. I'm... 16 and I'm a junior at Baldwin. I've been in
this program for. .. about six years. And this program helps me with a lot of things--not
only me, but also the other youths in it. And they helped us with life skills, job
skills ... or common sense .. . {laughter} . .. And right now we're, they're teach, teaching
us about a... a program... what is it. .. tobacco prevention. And ...
· .. we work hard helping our community... staying out of trouble and most of all we
work on team work. That's, like, one of our strengths. We work really good together.
Urn ...

· .. it reflects how, how we live at home ... and our school, like, with our peers and stuff,
we act better around them. We know what to do and what not to do. And ...
· .. since this program, ever since I joined this program, I've been really matured. It
helped me mature more and look at life at a different way. And it opened opportunities to
me. I got to see other places I, I could never see with just my family. Or they helped me
learn things that school couldn't teach me. And I'm really thankful for that. And ...
· .. so I would like to thank you guys for supporting our. .. program over the years. And I
ask you guys to keep supporting it. And also, the MEO youth trans--because without,
without them ...we wouldn't be able to go anywhere. And so ... thank you.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Dodd approached.

MS. DODD: ... Aloha, Council Members. My name is Lori Dodd. I'm a parent of. .. Kanoe,
come.
· .. Kanoe Lani Dodd. This is her first year at MEO. I had my oldest, Keaka, in from
grade. He's now a graduating senior. And this program has helped my son .. .in
bringing out all his self-esteem and character building. It's given me, as a single parent,
it's given me ... help in raising him, doing things that I couldn't teach him. And it's, I
think it's ...was a very positive thing for him. He's ... not gone into any wrong crowds or
drugs or.. .it's built a lot of character with him. And my daughter just started. And she's
enjoying it. And ... she don't need the self-esteem builder, though, she's ...Ms. Aloha.
7th

ALL: .. .{laughter} . ..
MS. DODD: But I wanna thank you for your support over the years 'cause it did tremendously
help my oldest, bring him out of his shell. And it's helping her. And hopefully... with
your continued support, this one in a few years-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. . {laughter} . ..
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MS. DODD: --can join, too ... {laughter} . ..
· .. Okay ... {inaudible}. .. But thank you again.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers?
· .. If not, thank you, again.
AUDIENCE: .. . {applause} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Next testifiers are ...
· .. Lon or Lori Kwock ...
MS. KWOCK, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Hi.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... and Breeana-Ray Hookano-Femandez.
NOTE:

Long pause while Ms. Kwock and Miss Hookano Fernandez approached.

MS. KWOCK: ... Good evening, ladies and gentlemen. My name--oh.
NOTE:

Ms. Kwock turned on the mic.

MS. KWOCK: Good evening-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MS. KWOCK: --ladies and gentlemen. My name is Lori Kwock, and I'm a teacher at Maui
Waena Intermediate School. I've been a teacher in the DOE for over 25 years. And
during that time, I've noticed that the career opportunities for the females, generally we
tend to sort of encourage them to go into traditionally female careers such as nursing or
secretaries or something of that nature. So what happens is I got involved with the
"Introduce a Girl to Engineering Day". And I was fortunate to have one of the students
from my school that participated here this evening. And she's going to tell you how she
experienced it. But. . .I know from first-hand knowledge that some of the girls that have
gone through the public school system, they've participated in this program or the career
shadowing at the high school level, they've gone on to college on the mainland, and
they've come back to Maui and they work in the Maui Research and Development
Technology Park. And I think it's really important that we give the girls an opportunity
to make the most of themselves, and also the fact that, you know, they'll be opportunities
for them later when they return to Maui. And so I just wanna encourage you to support
the Maui Economic Development group and... especially the "Introduce a Girl to
Engineering Day". And thank you for your time and consideration. Breeana?
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MISS HOOKANO-FERNANDEZ: I'm sorry I can't help but keep on smiling.
ALL: .. . {laughter} . ..
MISS HOOKANO-FERNANDEZ: Sorry I'm, like, kinda dirty, but, yeah, well. .. honestly,
before I went to "Introduce a Girl to Engineering Day", I thought I was just gonna work
at Macy's my whole life.
ALL: ... {laughter} . ..
MISS HOOKANO-FERNANDEZ: Until. . .I went there and they showed me the different
things that Introduce a Girl to Engineering does for you. Like, they showed us the jobs
that they have. And actually I'm thinking about. . .later on in life, going to college and
then going to Maui Electric and trying out to be an engineer over there. And ... yeah.
ALL: ... {laughter} . ..
MISS HOOKANO-FERNANDEZ: So that's all I can think of. I forget the rest. But think about
it--ifyou were to continue, I mean, women, single parents, women with babies ... they're
gonna have a minimum wage, and they're gonna need a job to keep up with their babies
and children and house for their family, so ...think about it, maybe, to keep it. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
... Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: .. .{applause} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Okay, that was the last group oftestifiers with children that need to
go back school tomorrow. So-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .{laughter). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --thank you very much, again, for allowing the children to go first.
The... first group that signed up to testify, Mike Morris ... as well as Marie White--I'll
just call 'em all up because they all represent the Maui Family YMCA. Richard
Blue ... Tony Leone... Chris Leone... Susie Fujihara.
. . . Susie is the last person, so go ahead, Mike ... {end of tape, start 1B} . ..
MR. MORRIS: Thanks for your time, too. I know these are long days for you. I'm here on
behalf of the Maui Family YMCA. We have ...we have lannched a 10 million dollar
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capital campaign improvement for our organization here in Kahului. We're asking that
the Council Members put 2.5 million dollars in the Budget for the YMCA. And I will
leave it at that. I know you've heard from me before. So let me have a few folks that we
impact. .. speak to you about the Y and what we do.
MR. T. LEONE: Hi, Committee Members. Thanks for the opportunity to speak. I'm
Tony Leone, and this is Chris Leone. And today we're speaking in behalf of the YMCA,
of course, but I have on my coaches hat for Special Olympics. Just give you a little
history on Special Olympics and its relationship to the YMCA. It was started, Special
Olympics actually started in 1978 on Maui by Mr. Jay Fujimoto who was a special ed
teacher at Puunene School. We held our first practices in the old heat exchanger pool at
the mill .. . (laughter) . .. You all remember that .. . (laughter). .. and it was great. It was
great for a while. It was the only heated pool on the island. It was wonderful. But they
filled it with coal .. . (laughter) . ..
ALL: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. T. LEONE: So we quickly moved to ... County pools. We knocked around County pools
for a while here and there ... but let's face it, they're cold and deep. It's very difficult to
get people with special needs into cold... deep pools and teach 'cm how to swim. In
1991, when the YMCA pool opened up ... they opened their arms to Special Olympics,
and we've been there ever since. It's gallon-for-gallon, square-foot-for-square-foot the
most used heated pool on the island. They allow us two hours twice a week to hold our
practices there. We are the most heavily trained Special Olympic team .. .in the State.
Weare the largest swimming delegation in the State. We have taken as many as
40 Special Olympic swimmers to the State games ... at one time. This year, we have
31 swimmers training at the YMCA pool. In fact, we've just come from practice today.
They're a wonderful organization. I can't say enough about them .
. . . This is Chris ...he'd like to say something. He's actually the holder of the State
medal for the IM. And were it not for the Special Olympics ...training at the YMCA
pool, I doubt very much whether he would have been able to learn all four strokes in that
pool. What have you got to say about the YMCA?
MR. C. LEONE: I love YMCA!
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(laughter} ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yea!
MR. T. LEONE: That about says it. And any consideration you can give the YMCA. . .I
support 100 percent. They're a wonderful organization. I don't think there's any
organization on the island of Maui that networks for good among other nonprofits--well,
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unless it's MEO, but you know, I mean that's .. . (laughter) . .. that's a big group
.. .(laughter) . .. okay, I mean they, they've got it on-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. T. LEONE: --size alone. But I mean, you know, pound-for-pound, the YMCA services a
lot of . .lot of good people. And God bless you guys and I hope you can think of them
when time comes. Okay.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Blue approached.

MR. BLUE: ... Thank you. My name is Richard Blue. I'm a long-time member of the YMCA.
And I just wanted to take a minute of your time to tell you how important the YMCA is
to our family. There's two reasons the YMCA is very important to us. One is the variety
of programs they have. I'm disabled, so I do, I'm in with the old people's class. I'm
doing the arthritic class in the water and I'm doing things on the treadmill ... very
supervised activities. Where my wife, on the other hand, is in with the 20 year olds
jumping up and down in aerobics classes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. BLUE: And it's, that's what makes it good--is that there's a variety for anybody and any
level that can feel welcome there. And the second thing that makes it real special are the
people. No matter how much money is thrown at 'em, and how much money is spent
building projects, if the people don't have their heart in it, it won't work. And the people
at the YMCA have their heart and soul in what they do. And it goes not only for the
people who operate it, but the people who attend it. And it's just a, a real tight family and
it feels good to go and work out. And if any of you have tried to work out and tried to
stay in shape, you know how hard it is to stay enthused. And it's those other, having the
in, not only the instructors, but also the other people pushing you and urging you on to
stay with it and not give up, you will be able. For some of us .. .it was a matter of
walking again, to get in the pool. Others, it was just a matter of we could walk, but it was
very slow ... and very slow, I mean walkers and things like that. So just to say come back
again and get in the cold water .. . (inaudible) . .. it's heated, but it could always be hotter.
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ahh ...
MR. BLUE: .. .(laughter) . .. And we, we really appreciate your time and consideration
on... funding them. Thank you.
MS. WHITE: ... Hi, I'm Marie White. And I've been working at the YMCA for the past
17Yz years. So this was before the building and before the pool. The Y has been a huge
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impact on my life personally--just in the opportunities its given to me to grow as a
teacher. I started out as a swim instructor and then was led into management, and then
fitness instructor. And most currently, I'm a physical education teacher working with the
children in the puhlic schools. Throughout the years, what I've noticed with the
members ... regardless of their age, their physical ability, or even their limitation, is they
enjoy coming to the Y. It's a relaxing atmosphere and it has something for everybody.
I'm involved with Special Olympics. I help with their, the swim coaching. And Tony
wanted to tell you that we also host the weightlifting there. So put that in there for
Special Olympics ... (laughter). .. I teach special needs classes, the arthritis classes
where people have taken those classes and they've said that they've had immediate
results. They feel better from the first class. Most recently.. .in one of my water
aerobics classes, a woman's husband has passed away and she expressed that's the only
class that she seems to be able to make it through ...through these days of her healing.
As far as the children are taught throughout the year. The most recent experience would
be one of the first infants I taught here has become a coworker .. .(laughter) . .. So
there's careers at the Y .. .(laughter) . .. as you can tell by my life.
ALL: .. . {laughter} . ..
MS. WHITE: And the recent endeavor of teaching PE in the schools, I must say, has been the
most rewarding. And expressing to the children here on Maui the importance of just
moving their body and how fun it can be. And the kids are having a great time doing
this. And they just really express how they enjoy, you know, just the simple games that
we play with them. Yeah, it's just a... an awesome place. And I hope the expansion, I
can work another 17Yz years. And I believe we're making a huge impact on the
community of Maui on the importance of a healthy, active lifestyle. And I thank you for
your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifiers?
... If not, I have a question for Mike. In regards to the organization, how much money
have you raised so far?
MR. MORRIS: We've raised 2.2 million and started in June. So we've done really well. I will
tell you, our last campaign.. .in... 1995--so it's been 12 years--we raised a total of
1.8 million. So we're already ahead of that-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
MR. MORRIS: --just beginning. So we're real happy with our start.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MORRIS: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
The next group to testify, we
Peter Smith .. Jonathan Ciao ... Ciacci, and Giovann ... Oster. .. Ostemeller--

do

have

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. . {laughter} ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Partnership.

Ostemeck.

Sorry!

They all represent the East Maui Watershed

MR. SMITH, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha.
MR. SMITH: Okay, aloha, Committee Members. My name is Peter Smith, and I'm currently an
employee working for the East Maui Watershed Partnership, under the research
corporation... of the University of Hawaii. My main job is to continue protecting the
native rainforest from alien plants and animals from spreading out of control.
... My crew and I has spent the last few years working in pristine forest habitat to help it
survive through its rapid loss of native understory. Non-native plants and animals have
contributed in this loss and have disrupted the balance of our ahupua'a... 'causing in the
past years for our delicate habitat to dissipate or go into extinction. We have also, in our
organization, coordinated public outreach so our schools and communities have the
knowledge and awareness of our culture and diversity. So on behalf of myself and the
crew of the East Maui Watershed, the Nature Conservancy, Haleakala National Park,
East Maui Irrigation, Department of Forestry and Wildlife, and the Maui Invasive Species
Committee, we'd like to thank you very much for helping us in what we do best--and that
is to take care of our land. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Peter. Members, any questions for the testifier?
... Thank you.
MR. SMITH: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Tracy Souza?
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... Tracy Souza?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right there, right there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go bring the ... (inaudible) . .. take the .. .(inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you get the mic to Tracy here?
NOTE:

Pause while Committee Staff assisted Mr. Souza with the microphone.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Followed by Norita Del. .. De Lima.
NOTE:

Long pause.

MR. SOUZA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: ... Over here.
MS. ESPELETA: Oh... okay.
MR. SOUZA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Can you hold it for me?
MS. ESPELETA: Sure.
MR. SOUZA: Hello, my name is Tracy Souza. And I'm speaking on behalf of my brother
Kevin and I. We have been using the new Wailuku pool for over ten years now. We
have noticed over the years the County has been losing lifeguards. What has happened to
hiring firemen to work part-time on their days off? Being unable to walk or stand, this is
the only pool that my brother and I can do exercises safely. The water holds up our
bodies and arms, allowing us to move around on our own. This is the only pool on Maui
that was designed and made for people of all ages. Water is kept heated ...with its water
only reaching three feet deep. Its short distance to parking makes it easier for everyone
with wheelchairs or walkers. This pool is used by stroke and heart attack patients, also
people who has, have had knee surgery...rehab in after surgery to be able to walk again.
There is also another deeper pool in the front. But because of the lifeguard shortage, it is
closed. Please hire more lifeguards. I have a second speech on the Ala Hou Program.
The Ala Hou Program was created for the mobility and visually impaired who cannot
find easier transportation because of their disability. My brother and I have been regular
users of the Ala Hou Program from its begiuning in 1997. Being disabled and confined
to our wheelchairs, we don't know, we know what it's like to be without transportation.
This past. .. past summer of 2006, the Ala Hou Program budget was cut without the
community knowing about it. I also served on the Ala Hou Advisory Board. So I have
heard firsthand the good it has done in our community--disabled being able to go home
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for Thanksgiving and Christmas from Hale Makua and the Kula Sans
hospital. .. everyone wants to be with family on the holidays. The Maui Bus is okay, but
it's not specialized service that the disabled with wheelchairs and walkers need. We took
years and years and long hours to set up this program. Please think long and hard on
what I have said. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros, followed by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Souza, thank you, for your testimony.
. . . Yeah, I know, I have seen you at the Wailuku pool. Is the lift there still working to
lower you into the pool and take you out?
MR. SOUZA: There's the, there's a lift chair that people who can are able to stand and walk to
it ... and the lifeguard help them in the water. There's also another lift, a Hoyer lift, like
for myself where I can't stand, I can't walk. The lifeguards help us in the water.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: If that pool is closed for shortage of. .. pool guards, are
there any other pools that the County has that has that same ... accessories and, and
equipment for you?
MR. SOUZA: All the pools should have the Hoyer lifts, but it's not the same 'cause the pool is
only three feet deep. War Memorial, I think so, is three to four feet. No, they, they don't
have bars. You kuow sometimes, when you--the new Wailuku pool, they have bars in the
pool. I can hang on to the bars, I can exercise. The other pools don't have it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony.
MR. SOUZA: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... Yeah ... Stacy [sic}, you said in the summer of 2006
there was a cutback in your transportation budget. Okay, could you be more
specific--how much and, and was there a rationale given to you folks why?
MR. SOUZA: Uh ...we .. .1, I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
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MR SOUZA: The only, the way I found out that it was cut, I tried to ask trans, for
transportation to go to Lahaina-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. SOUZA: I used to do that every month. They just told us, oh, we cannot go, it's... the Ala
Hou was cut. And they said... the Ala Hou only designed for, to stay in your community.
You can't go out. You gotta stay in Wailuku or Kahului. People who gotta go to doctor
from Paia wanna go doctor to Kihei, they cannot. They gotta go to Central. What about
the doctor in Kihei? They cannot go now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay-MR. SOUZA: Not fair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Was any, was anything stated to you that because they
have the Maui Bus ... and the Maui Bus is equipped to take disabled citizens, was that
ever mentioned as an alternative?
MR SOUZA: Uh .. .it wasn't mentioned to me, but I knew about the Maui Bus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. SOUZA: I knew about the alternative. I tried riding it, and ... you have, you, you try, it's
terrible.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... {inaudible} . ..
MR. SOUZA: To the ... yeah, the public rush to the bus ...the disable stuck behind the back.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so in other words, because of public use and it's a
mixed use--yes, I understand that--it becomes difficult ...
MR SOUZA: Well ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... for you to get in?
MR. SOUZA: They have... you have to call, make one reservation. They'll, they'll help you-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR SOUZA: --but it's, it's not the same.
servlce--

MEO was one.. .like I say, it's a specialized
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
MR. SOUZA: --for people with wheelchairs. It was-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SOUZA: --designed for wheelchairs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay-MR. SOUZA: The Maui Bus will take us ...but we have to sit in the front. Space only for two
wheelchairs... out of the whole bus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct. Yes. Okay, thank you Stacy [sic} for this
infonnation. Thank you.
MR. SOUZA: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions? If not, Ms. De Lima?
MS. DE LIMA: Aloha, Chainnan and Council Members. I would like to thank you all for the
past years of help. My name is Norita De Lima... and I'm here on myself and behalf of
MEO. The disabled people of Maui ... are having transportation problems with the
Hala [sic} Hou Program. We, the disabled, are being told that unless we leave in the
area, we, we cannot. .. no longer being served transportation... our... besides being our,
our area. I don't think it's fair. I think we should have equal access to transportation.
'Cause if I wanna go to Kihei for medical, I can. But then--and it's because ...with my
medical program that I have, that I'm under. But if somebody that does not have my
medical. .. won't be able to go to Kihei. And I don't think that's right. It should be equal
service. I'm here today to ask for funding for the outskirts ... so I'm able to go upcountry
with my friends as I have no family on the island. Also, have clients from Kula San and
from any care home...they wauna go down with their families for the holidays.
· .. Also, asking funding to expand the current Hala [sic} Hou Program... on its hours 'til
10 p.m. on all runs if possible Also, funding for chore service as I cannot do my... to
clean my own house. And so ...many other Hale Mahaolu elderly face the same
problem.
· .. The Maui Bus is accessible to get on the bus, but the roads or the sidewalks is not
accessible. And some of the drivers from the Maui Bus... are not tying us down right.
When the bus is moving, the ... we can feel the wheelchair moving also.
· .. And some of the drivers ... because when they pick up a wheelchair, they're running
like five, sometimes ten minutes late. And they try to make it up on the road, but you
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know, you can feel 'em. I mean, I know I can feel it on the wheelchair when they
speeding. And I don't think that should be happening also. And... l would like to thank
MEO for the support for the community, island of Maui for the Head Start ... the youth
and the elderly and the disabled programs. Also, thank you for your. .. time, Council
Chair and Council Members. Any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Norita, for coming tonight. And thank you for being
a great supporter of the MEO system which means so much to so many people. I'm
concerned about your statement about. .. tying, not being tied down properly. Can you
tell me a little bit more?
MS. DE LIMA: Well, I .. . (inaudible) . .. I don't have problems with the MEO bus ... but when
I ride the County bus, and I just ride it between Kahului and Wailnku. And there were
several times that I was not tied down properly that my wheelchair moved. And I had to
tell. .. there was one time they tied me with only with one strap .. .in the front, and say,
oh, no need tie the other strap. And I, I turned that, I turned that driver in. And I keep on
complaining, but they said, oh, the drivers are trained. But. . .I don't know. I think ...1
must be trained more than them .. . (laughter) . .. 1 don't know, 'cause I know what is
right and what is wrong.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, thank you for telling us because we'll be looking at
Transportation very shortly during our Budget process, and we'll be sure to bring it up
and ask. Thank you-MS. DE LIMA: And I know this last incident, I was just about reaching... Queen Kaahumanu
Shopping Center and I had to ask one of the drivers that was coming on to please check
my chair. And she had to retie my straps, I mean, tighten up the straps.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. We don't want anybody getting hurt. Thank you.
MS. DE LIMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you, Ms. De
Charlene Doi ... followed by Virginia Rosetes.
NOTE:

Lima.

The

next

testifier

IS

Pause while Ms. Doi approached.

MS. DOl: ... It's a privilege to speak before you tonight and to request your consideration of a
budget request for Kansha Preschool. Kansha Preschool is located in the Nisei Veterans
Memorial Center. We're brand new, and we're gonna be approacbing our first
anniversary in a few months. So it's been a really exciting and challenging year for us.
And the reason we're coming before you for a budget request is just that--it's exciting
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and challenging to be involved in a program where we have preschoolers working
together on a daily basis with the elder clients at the Maui Adult Day Care Center, which
is our partner and our neighbor in the facility. We are the only two programs there, and
it's been such a wonderful experience bringing the two generations together. And it was
a goal for the Nisei veterans who, who decided to build the center--that they wanted to
take care of the youngest and the eldest populations in our County. And I think we've
done a really good job of beginning that dream and that fulfillment. And we'd really like
to continue that. What you see when you get there is ... a group of people--both from the
Adult Day Care and the Preschool--working very closely together, very happily together.
And I think that's what people see when they come into the program. You also see
children waiting for the grandmas and grandpas in the parking lot. ..making sure that
they can all go into the building together in the morning. Or grandmas and grandpas
forgetting that they have their own ailments and limitations and just deciding well, we're
gonna help the kids out instead. So you know, there's a real family feeling there. And
we hope that our high-quality program can continue. Part of the blessing that we have in
being small--we're licensed for 16--and we have no space to grow and the parents love it
like that. And so do we because we can give a lot of individualized attention. But that
smallness is also a problem for us because we don't have the means to do major
fundraising for our program. We have a small number of families, and it's hard
to ... have them do more than they can handle, too. Some of them are already on tuition
subsidies. And the other thing is you don't run a good program unless you have excellent
qualified staff that are committed and dedicated to working, not just with your children,
but the clients next door. Because that's another piece of, of. .. what's important for our
staff to do. So in coming before you, I'm hoping that you will consider all of that. We
think we have a great program. We invite you to come and visit it if you haven't already.
And thank you very much for the opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Charlene. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... Thanks for being here and thanks for working with our kids.
It's really a wonderful thing that we have preschools. I'm, I'm interested--do the parents
have to pay for the children to go to school?
MS. DOl: Yeah. We, we have a tuition fee. So it's not free for them. It is open to the public,
and it's first-come, first-served. But. .. as any parent paying preschool tuition knows,
there's a limit to how much that you can really afford no matter how good the program is
and how much you wanna be there. And my goal is not to raise tuition as much as
possible. We have parents that do a lot for our program just on their own. And I feel that
if we can help them out by not raising tuition, it will, it would be really beneficial to the
program.
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COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: I can certainly understand that.
MS. DOl: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Do you have support from other organizations that help? You
mentioned scholarships.
MS. DOl: We don't have tuition scholarships, but we have some support from the Nisei
Veterans Center itself, especially in this first year... as, as we're up and running. And
we'd like to be as self-sufficient as possible, if we can.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. I'm sure the program is a great benefit to the
grannies and grandpas as well as the kids.
MS. DOl: Oh, we love it. Yeah.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MS. DOl: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANlLLA: Thank you. Member Anderson?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Sorry.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: How much is the tuition?
MS. DOl: Okay. Full-time tuition, which includes a hot lunch is 590 a month. Yeah.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Wow.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: And for, for-MS. DOl: And for part-time, which is up 'til 4 o'clock, is 540 a month .
. . . Five hundred forty a month.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For part-time?
MS. DOl: For up 'til 4 o'clock. That's our part-time schedule. We don't-COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: So what's-MS. DOl: --have a half-a-day or anything like that.

- 26 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 3, 2007
Kahului Community Center, Main Hall

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So what is the 519 cover?
MS. DOl: Five ninety is for-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, ninety.
MS. DOl: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. . (inaudible) . .. almost 600 dollars.
MS. DOl: It's almost-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 590-MS. DOl: --600 dollars for up 'til 5 o'clock.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's for up to 5 o'clock.
MS. DOl: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Starting at 8?
MS. DOl: 7:30.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 7:30-MS. DOl: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --to 5.
MS. DOl: 5, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. And-MS. DOl: Yeah .. .I know ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how much funding, how much funding are you asking
for?
MS. DOl: We're asking for 25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
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MS. DOl: Thank you. Any more?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. DOl: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier, Virginia Rosetes?
MS. ROSETES: Aloha and good evening. I'm Virginia Rosetes. I came to Hawaii last
April 2006. I'm here tonight to express how great. .. grateful I am to MEO. Maui
Economic Opportunity is always there to help the newcomers like me. My case manager,
-,--c:- Carlina, was so kind to help me achieve my goaL And I was working in the farm
when I just arrived. But through MEO, I am now what I am. I am now working at, as a
certified nursing assistant at Hale Makua Kahului. This is a dream that came true through
the help of MEO. From the bottom of my heart, thank you so much for this great
opportunity. This is a treasure that I will carry forever. Mahalo and mabuhay, MEO.
May you ... {laughter} . ..
ALL: .. .(laughter). ..
MS. ROSETES: May you help more people like me. Please continue supporting MEO. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? If not, thank
you very much.
AUDIENCE: .. .{applause} . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... Sarada Macauley?
MS. MACAULEY, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yes.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Macauley approached.

MS. MACAULEY: '" Hi, I'm Sarada Macauley, a single parent and I'm ... {blah} . .. and I'm
speaking on behalf of Big Brothers/Big Sisters. For my daughter, Big Brothers/Big
Sisters is about building her self-esteem, making friends, and extended family. She has
fun choosing activities from sports, board games, art, or just someone to talk to with a
patient ear. So nervous. Weare grateful she has someone she can depend on to see once
a week almost every week in a safe environment. Now my son asked for a Big. I told
him he has to wait until he's 5 years old. He screams "yea". And I had to remind him
he's only 3. He has two more years to wait. But now every day he says he's 5 and he's
ready for his Big.
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AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter). ..
MS. MACAULEY: .. .(laughter) . .. Every week my daughter is excited to go to Big
Brothers/Big Sisters. She smiles more on these days. She brags to friends, family, and
strangers about her Bigs from Big BrotherslBig Sisters. So it's definitely a great place
for kids. And I would like to thank the board for your support for all these years.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
... Seeing none, thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Nancy Shimoda?
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Shimoda approached.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Followed by Patricia Weiding.
MS. SHIMODA: ... Council Chair Pontanilla, Members of the Maui County Council, ladies
and gentlemen, good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good evening.
MS. SHIMODA: I'm Nancy Shimoda, representing the Maui Rakkuan Club, a senior club with
around 100 members who meet at the Wailuku Hongwanji Social Hall. I'm here to
testify on behalf of MEO. I'd like to first thank you for your very generous support of
MEO's programs and services throughout the years. For 40 years, Maui Rakkuan Club
has been a member of the MEO ohana, and have benefited from their services. Some of
the members are now in their 90s and have seen MEO's tremendous growth and the great
impact that that organization has had on our community. Last week, 12 club members
and I had a chance to interact with a few Youth Bank members in an
inter. . .intergenerational get together at the Maui Botanical Park. We shared our
kid ... kid-time experiences in the country and plantation villages and the hardships we
endured and fun we had growing up during the World War II days. In turn, we heard
about the Youth Bank, from the young teens and what it was all about. How fortunate
those young teens are. It's a great program. MEO is committed to helping people,
changing lives. Their various programs and services touch people of all ages and
backgrounds. Please continue funding their requests. They truly can make a difference
in the lives of many ofMaui's people. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Nancy.
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AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... {applause} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you, again, Nancy.
. . . Patricia Wei ding?
MS. WEIDING, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Followed by Isabella Bissen.
MS. WEIDING: ... Aloha, Maui County Council. I'm ... (end o/tape, start 2A) . .. MEO, and
I want to express that. My name is Patricia Weiding, and I have been the beneficiary of
emergency funding from MEO twice in the past two years for dental work. I wanna
share with you all a bit of personal history so you may understand how very much I
appreciate your gift to me. First of all, in the year 2000, I became disabled with a stroke,
or aneurism, on the right side of my brain. The stroke occurred when I consumed an
Alka-Seltzer tablet which contained PPA, phenlproplamine. Few people know what this
is or the side effects of it. But it's been taken out, so no, no more worry. But I did have a
stroke after ingesting it, and it changed my life forever. Two angels from Meals on
Wheels found me semi-conscious and called my son, Rory Day. Rory took me to the
Memorial hospital, Maui Memorial hospital. .. Center emergency room, and I spent a
week in the hospital. I was semi-paralyzed on my left side. I was getting slowly
stronger. .. though my husband of 17 years had left me because he didn't wanna be a
caregiver ... {laughter} . .. So I was emotionally bereft. I began having strong abdominal
pains and saw my personal physician, Dr. Joseph Kamaka, weekly. The diagnosis was
always the same--I had the flu. This went on for two months. Then, I awoke early one
morning with severe abdominal pains. I called my son Rory to--hell, my pain was so
severe that I was calling an ambulance. He lives close to me, so he said he would take
me to the emergency room at Maui Memorial Medical Center, which he promptly did.
The emergency room doctor on duty was Dr. Lugo. He wanted to perform an exploratory
laperotomy. During the surgery, I had a cardiac arrest and four more strokes. The
outcome of the surgery was that I had necrotizing pancreatitis--a gallstone was
obstructing my pancreatic duct. This had gone on for several months with a
malfunctioning pancreas releasing enzymes into my intestinal area... and my intestines
were basically being eaten up. Now I only have seven feet of intestine left. Also, my
spleen, half of my pancreas, and my gall bladder were removed. Because of the nature of
my illness, I received very little personal care. My teeth were never brushed. I spent
5 Yz months in the hospital. Two years ago, I had an abscessed molar. I also had very
little income. My social security disability had no funds for dental work. I called and
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could not find a dentist that would take payments. My case worker from the Office on
Aging ... suggested that I call MEO ... and possibly I could apply for help. My abscessed
molar needed a root canal and to be crowned. I was already on antibiotics for a, for the
infection. I did as she ...had suggested and I was awarded enough money for the root
canal. After this experience, I found a dental clinic. I bought dental insurance through
the clinic's HO-ALA dental program. But, unfortunately, their benefits are negligible. I
have been seeing a dentist for the past two years. I get an annual exam and entitled to
two tooth cleanings per year, but this has not happened because they basically don't have
enough hygienists to take care of, extra help, extra people. My dentist did x-rays
annually. He always told me was I had no problems ...though it has been painful to bite
down on both sides of my jaw. One month ago, I began running a temperature and my
jaw was very sore and I couldn't chew on that side. Luckily... when I called their clinic,
they told me I could see a hygienist from the Big Island that they fly over to Maui three
times per week, and... they put her up in a hotel ... (laughter) . .. So they made an
appointment for me-MS. SAKAMOTO: Three minutes.
MS. WElDING: --to see her ASAP. Bernie had ... been told of my problems, but when she saw
my molars, she said 1. .. she asked how badly they hurt. And I told her I was eating baby
food. She told me I needed root canals and... she would try and find a dentist for me in
the clinic. She left for a moment and found another dentist who was working across from
me. And in ten minutes he gave me a full exam and agreed with her that I needed to have
the work done. I went to MEO again, where I met with Tracy Nobriga who arranged
with MEO to gift me, again, with a grant so that I could have the two root canals. This,
hopefully, is the end--with the exception of getting my cavities taken care of, and I have
to pay for the crowns which will be-MS. SAKAMOTO: Four minutes.
MS. WEIDING: --1,500 for both. You could see how much receiving that grant has helped me.
And I wauna thank you for supporting MEO with this type of financial help for people.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
... Thank you, again .
. . . Isabella Bissen?
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Bissen approached.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Members, after the testimony by this group, we're gonna take a
ten-minute recess. Go ahead, Isabella.
MS. BISSEN: Aloha ahiahi. I was gonna speak on behalf of our parents, but they have
surprised us by being here in the flesh. So I'm gonna let them speak for themselves.
MS. DELAPINIA: ... Aloha, good evening. My name is Kahililani Delapinia. I currently have
two children that goes to MEOIMCC Head Start. First of all, I wanted to thank you all
for supporting and funding this program. This program is awesome. Ever since my
children has been enrolled, they have helped me in many different ways that is very
unexplainable. Touched us in.. .in a lot of ways, actually. Um ...
... second of all, L .. wanted to ask you .. .(laughter} ... if you could please continue to
fund this program 'cause it's awesome. It. .. the teachers are, like, the staffs are just
awesome. They're out there. They're outrageous.
AUDIENCE: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. DELAPINIA: They're the bomb! I love them. I love them all. At all the Head Starts--but
MCC is best.
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
MS. DELAPINIA: No .. .(laughter) . .. MEO is the best. . .(laughter) . .. Thank you.
MS. AGUILAR: Aloha, Council Members. I represent MEO Head Start Wailuku A. My name
is Jlorra Aguilar. I just wanted to kind of touch bases on, kind oftook me a little while to
get here this evening so I was kind of glad when we were still kind of waiting outside.
I'm a full-time single mom. I work a full-time job and I go to school part-time. And four
of my...my children are in school full-time. And my youngest, Selena, she goes to MEO
Head Start Wailuku A. And the last two years, I've been on Policy Council with MEO
Head Start. And when I sit on the Council, on the Policy Council, I can see on how
much, you know, our Council Members ... fund us. And I just wanted to take this time to
thank you. From a single mom's point of view ... I've saved... prior to MEO Head Start,
my daughter, it was costing me almost 500 dollars a month for child care. I've saved
almost 6,000 dollars a year. I've put that to my education now, which .. .I just started this
semester. So I have a long journey... but I know that education is important to my
children, as well as myself. Thank you very much for the funding.
MS. CAYABAN: ... Hi, my name is Shyann Cayaban. My son is currently attending MEO
Pre-plus Head Start and Lihikai Elementary School. I'm just here to thank you guys
and ...have you guys support them even more in the new future. Thank you.
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MS. ANGEL: I just going say the rest of us all teachers. My name is Doris Angel, and I've been
working for the Head Start program for about a year-and-a-half now. And I tell you, it's
the best job I have ever had. I've been teaching for 26 years. And working with MEO
Head Start has been the best. And what I, I really enjoy seeing is the fact that--what she
said, that the, the child care is free and that the moms can, can get. .. you know a hold of
their lives and do something with their lives. And the majority of my moms are all going
back to school. And to me that just is, it's so exciting to be there to support them in that.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause). ..
MS. BISSEN: Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: .. .{applause} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifiers? If not, thank you very much
for being here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good job.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. . {inaudible} . .. good job .. . {inaudible} . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Thank you and good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members ...
. . . Members ... of the community, the Budget and Finance Committee will be taking a
ten-minute recess. We'll be back at about 7:30 .. .{gavel} . ..
RECESS:

7:18 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:33 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... {gavel} . .. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Thank you, everyone, for the short break that we had. At this time, the
Chair would like to call on Walter Enomoto ... next testifier.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Enomoto approached.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Following Walter would be Joy Brann.
MR. ENOMOTO: . . . Aloha and good evening, Council Members, Chair Pontanilla.
Walter Enomoto, President of Maui Bicycle Alliance. And I see, unfortunately,
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Councilmember Johnson left, and I was hoping to at least. .. reiterate some of the points
that I spoke about last night. Probably the only one here tonight to ask you not to give
money, but to delete money from a budget item--that is the 500,000 dollar request for the
design and land acquisition of the proposed Baldwin Avenue bike path listed in the
Paia-Haiku Capital Improvement Plan. We'd, again, like to see that money used for. .. to
increase funding for the proposed downhill. .. bike tour industry assessment that was
listed in the Makawao-Pukalani-Kula CIP plan--increasing that appropriation from 250
to, ideally, 400,000. And after speaking with Councilmember Molina, ideally if these
funds cannot be used for, to help social services and other needs in the County.. .if they
can be put forward to looking at, again... completion of the North Shore Greenway,
which is the multi-use path that would connect Paia to the Kahului, Central area and the
Kihei Greenway. Both of these projects, again, have languished in Public Works for now
three, almost going on four administrations. We ask for your continued support of the
300,000 dollar budget appropriation in the Countywide Bikeway Program. These funds
are used to complete shoulder and signage projects along County roadways as listed in
Bike Plan Hawaii. This is the bike plan that I'm referring to that is Statewide, that the
County has used for bicycle planning purposes. We'd also like this study, that this
One of the things that I'm
proposed downhill tour... study is important.
sure ... Councilmember Baisa and Councilmember Molina--who also sit on the State
Highway Safety Plan Workgroup along with myself and many others--know that it does
not come down strictly to engineering. That to solve a highway-related.. .issue, we need
to not only look at engineering but also education, enforcement, emergency services,
economics, encouragement, and everything else. And that's what I'm hoping that the
Council will see the logic in creating a study that can address all of these issues, not just
the engineering aspect. It has to be all encompassing on that. One correction to
a... question that Councilmember Anderson asked Dave DeLeon on the project cost.
Total build out is estimate, on that, at 9.3 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (inaudible). ..
MR. ENOMOTO: 5.6 million dollars in Federal monies would be matched with 3.2 million in
General Obligation Bonds put out by the County, and 500,000 in County funds. There's
also another 500,000 dollar appropriation for this same project listed in the 2009 Budget,
also. So again, we ask you to look at these carefully. Seriously consider pulling this
money. I can say that this plan, this appropriation is political. It's not practical. So I,
again, [ ask for your serious consideration on this matter. And I thank you for the
opportunity to testify tonight.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Walter. Members, any question? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Walter, thanks for coming back tonight and bringing more
information. We appreciate that. The, the downhill ... bike tour assessment study ...
MR. ENOMOTO: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... you're, you're wanting us to take some of this 500,000
and put it towards that study?
MR. ENOMOTO: To increase the amount. Uh, my-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and, and how much is it currently?
MR. ENOMOTO: It's 250,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you want it to be 400,000?
MR. ENOMOTO: Well, the number. .. what I'm looking at--and I know that studies can cost
the, the scopes, as the scope widens, the cost increases. Whatever that figure should
be--if it's 400,000, higher or lower--what this study should do is look at all aspects ... not
just an engineering study.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. ENOMOTO: We don't need just that. We want it, we, we should resolve--whatever money
it takes to resolve all of the issues regarding the downhill tour industry, the recent things
going on in the Legislature regarding the County's regulations of downhill tour
industries ... changes within the industry that have occurred since... the public uproar in
the last year, changes that the downhill tour industry has done, other changes on
Baldwin Avenue and other routes--all of that needs to be put on the table, figured out
and ... a path from there will come out that is, has all the stakeholders' input and we can
move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ... all of those aspects of the, of the scope that you
wanna see in the, in the study, was that in your written testimony that you gave us
yesterday?
MR. ENOMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, great.
MR. ENOMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. ENOMOTO: Thank you. And I will be talking more about the Kihei project tomorrow
night.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... (laughter) . .. Oh, wonderful!
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MR. ENOMOTO: So you'll see me again tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Appreciate .. .(laughter) . .. that a lot.
AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Walter.
MR. ENOMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Next testifier is Joe Brann.. .Joy Brann.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Brann approached.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Followed by Carrie Ann Shirota.
MS. BRANN: ... Good evening and thank you for being here again this evening. I'm returning
to testify on behalf of the American Ingenuity Alliance, again. And I just wanted to let
you know that I've been teaching in our schools for the last 12 years as a public health
educator for Hawaii Department of Health. I teach family planning. So first I tell the
kids don't do it, you're not ready .. .(laughter) . .. and they have to repeat "I'm not ready
yet", and then when they, the time comes, they have to say "1 always use condoms". But
1 work with the high-risk kids, primarily. I work with kids who have difficulty... you
know, fulfilling their academic, you know, abilities or whatever. And they're, you know,
1 can see them on a criminal career track already in elementary school. So any kinds of
programs that can help students to be able to express and do what they love that's not
necessarily requires a traditional academic mind, then those kinds of programs are very
much... promoted by teachers. And in the last few days, I've received several letters of
recommendation from various teachers at different schools, specifically about this. One
comment is from Monica Morakis. She is a Behavior Health Counselor at Maui High
School. And she's part of the redesign team at Maui High. And they're looking at
redesigning the curriculum so that it focuses more on the creative and industrial arts. The
ag program, there's a beautiful new building up at King Kekaulike High School for an
agricultural program that is sitting empty because there's not enough funding and not
enough qualified staff to manage that program. The ag program at Maui High,
the .. .is ... successful like the automotive program. So these are the kinds of programs
that the, the American Ingenuity Alliance would like to fund and would like to support.
So one of the letters that you're looking at is from Shannon Rowe, who is a former Maui
High student. He would like to take over for Dennis when he retires at the end of this
calendar year. But he cannot because he's not willing to take a pay cut in order to teach.
With
He would love to take over that program and to keep it going.
American... Ingenuity Alliance, we would be able to supplement his, his income so he
could afford to teach. And we ... 1 mean, he doesn't have a degree either, so there would
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have to be some other, you know, adaptations for all of that to happen. But this is a, this
is how we want to go forward in this. And I don't wanna take your time. I know you
guys are tired tonight, and I appreciate you coming out. But I do hope to speak with you
more about this project. Okay... we are asking for 300,000 dollars ... that would be
matched equally with private investment funds. Eighty percent of the money we, would
go towards Hawaii State Teacher's Association, directly to our teachers to determine how
to use it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... Good evening, Joy. Nice to see you again.
MS. BRANN: You, too.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: You mentioned private matching funds.
MS. BRANN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Can you kind of tell us where you think those might come from?
And I understand you may not have commitments yet.
MS. BRANN: Yes, the private investment is coming from National Labor Unions; inventor
groups, like groups that support inventors or. .. and then private foundations and pension
funds. I mentioned last time that the California public employees retirement pension
fund is the largest in the country. They are interested in investing in our organization, in
this project.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just one more question, and that is your organization here on
Maui ... does it have officers, does this have an office?
MS. BRANN: No, the funding that we would, that we would get from the County and private
investment would be to go directly into staffing the, and starting up the Maui offices as
the headquarters. There, that, there isn't real, there isn't an office as yet. But we, the
money would be used so that we could have people like... Shannon and, and other people
like that to be able to learn how to ... advise, to read patents and under, you know, the real
technical stuff that these kids are already well qualified to do.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: So, so the entity to receive the money would be which entity?
Because, you know, in order to get any money from the County, we have to have an
entity that qualifies to receive it.
MS. BRANN: It, that entity is ...
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... it's a prime, I know it's a... domestic--l'm still learning all this myself. It's a
domestic nonprofit special purpose corporation. It's already set up like that to oversee
the use of intellectual property. But it, it, he, he has set it up. And that's exactly, those
are the kinds of questions that if we can meet with you one-on-one, Ian and myself with
yourselves, then we'll be able to go over the details of how all that works.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Is this a national organization?
MS. BRANN: It. . .it would be a national organization. It involves national organized labor, as
well as inventures [sic} from across the country.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, but is this organization established already in other
states or other jurisdictions?
MS. BRANN: No, we want to establish it here. We want Hawaii and we want Maui to be the
central headquarters.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So this would be a new organization.
MS. BRANN: It, yes, it would be a new business. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay, thank you, Ms. Brann.
MS. BRANN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Just a fast question.
MS. BRANN: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You mentioned that the money will go directly to HSTA?
MS. BRANN: The .. .1, it's hard for me at this stage to explain how all that works. That's more
what Ian's understanding, or you know his, his picture. Now, personally, I don't, I'm
still learning all this stuff. But his idea is that, that. .. education and teachers have more
control with these extra funds in terms of how they determine how to use them. And like
with Maui High School when doing their, their redesign... their, they're looking at what,
how their students will succeed and how they can financially support that. And this is,
you know, we, we want. .. we want teachers to have more power over determining how,
you know, how to, how their students can achieve certain... or succeed.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, hi, good evening. Joy, thank you for coming. You
know the jurisdiction of education comes under the State ofHawaii-MS. BRANN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --and the Board of Education. Have you-MS. BRANN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --you or Ian Chan Hodges have any preliminary talks from
any State officials that could offer some help?
MS. BRANN: I know that Ian has been working at the State level to pass his bill, HB 1670,
which I don't know if that's mentioned in here. But. .. but. . .I'm not sure where he's
gone with that. And that's, again, why it would be really helpful if we could meet to
answer these more detailed kinds of questions. I do want to let him know the questions
that you've had tonight so that we can follow up with you on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, that would be my question--if that bill relates to any
funding assistance from the State. Because I feel the State-MS. BRANN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --should do their part to provide some assistance and not only
depend on the County. So since the students or education comes under their
jurisdiction-MS. BRANN: Yeah, well, I know part of it is wanting to set it up on Maui so that Maui County
accrues the revenues that come in from the agreements between labor and the
inventures [sic] so that, that Maui County actually gets a piece of that--the monies that
come in--so that it's part of our County budget. At the State level. .. and, and this, the
depart, the DOE stuff, I don't understand, which you have more ... you, you're a former
teacher, is that correct? Yes. So you have better understanding of, of how all that works.
But. .. yeah ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... Thank you, Joy.
MS. BRANN: Thank-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much.
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MS. BRANN: --you very much for your time. And good evening.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Carrie Ann Shirota?
... Followed by Dean and Sherri ...Powell.
NOTE:

Long pause while Ms. Shirota approached.

MS. SHIROTA: ... Aloha, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Council. My name is
Carrie Ann Shirota, and I'm the Director ofMEO's BEST Reintegration Program. And
BEST stands for: Being Empowered and Safe Together. We provide comprehensive
training and support services to men and women that are incarcerated at MCCC. And we
help them while they're in prison with classes and training and as they transition out into
our community. And the goal, overarching goal of our program is to help individuals in
prison rebuild their lives. And we do that with a very community-based approach. We
have funding from the Federal government, State, County, as well as private funds. And
you will see that in the past any money that the County has given, primarily through the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns, has been a wise investment for our
community. And we help to promote public safety by giving men and women the tools,
the training so that they don't recommit crimes, that we steer them away from the
criminal track that Joy just spoke of previously. And we provide them with opportunities
so that they become law abiding, contributing members of their ohana and our
community. And I think that our clients are the best advocates for our program, so I'd
like them to have an opportunity to share with you in their own words how BEST has
helped them rebuild their lives. So I'd like to tum it over to Murphy and to Shane.
Thank you.
MR. TAUA: Thank you. My name is Murphy Taua. And ...
. . . for the BEST program, I think it really helped me. When I was incarcerated... before
I was incarcerated, I was one .. .I was one menace in the community. And that kind of
person is what the community no like.
And... the whole time that I was
incarcerated ... the biggest thing on my mind was ...when I see the parole board and they
tell me I going home ... how I going get money, how I going live life ... you know, how,
how I going ... do things. And I went, I did a few years in Halawa, and then I did a few
years in Waiawa. I took up all the classes that they had for offer. But when I got back
over here, I heard about this program. They gave me all these classes. I took up all these
classes. And ... the biggest thing to me was, when I get out, how I going get money
because everybody need money for make a living. And...my, my way of thinking was
soon as I get out of the gate ... going make one phone call, I going back to doing what I
was doing. And that's the easy way for make money, fast money. I got introduced to the
program. I took up all what they had for offer me. And .. .I think the best thing that they
taught me was for change my way of thinking. Once they helped me change the way of
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thinking .. .I became one better person. And ... they always told me that if I needed help
with anything, for call 'em, let 'em know what, I going ask 'em what I need help for.
And 1 was the type that 1 would never like ask nobody for help or like do things on my
own. So while I was incarcerated, I when ask 'em that at. .. you know, 1 going be getting
out pretty soon...1 got out July 13, 2005 ... and 1 needed one job. And so when 1 was
incarcerated, I was on work furlough. And I needed one job, so 1 told 'em if they could
help me look for one job. Then we had this ... they had this thing at MEO, these classes
about, all the employers came. You know, I was checking out all the different jobs, what
get, and ended up 1 got one job at Tasty Crust as one cook. So my next thing was, how 1
was going get to work. I neva like walk and everybody going see me walking. So-AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. TAUA: --1 took the nightshift. And then .. .I called MEO and asked them if they could
help me out. .. with transportation. And they said, yeah, they can help me out for
transportation. They said they was going buy me one bicycle. So I said, okay, one
bieycle would do, as long as 1 get something for go to work. So 1 did that for awhile, did
that for about two years. And ... l never have to worry about any, anything that I needed,
1 called MEO. 1 needed clothes, so 1 was thinking--l had ...when I left the facility, they
gave me two brand new jeans. And that's all I had. And 1 was thinking if 1 going wash
these jeans every two days, the thing going get all faded and broken up.
AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. TAUA: So 1 when call MEO and asked MEO if they can help me out. And they said, okay,
you know, they going give me some money and go buy, they bought all my clothes-MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. TAUA: --all what 1 needed for work. So 1 worked over there and...when 1 got paroled, 1
went back into construction. And 1 was thinking, well, all the money 1 was making at
Tasty Crust. .. with the 100 dollar store orders we had in jail, 1 was spending all my
money on store orders. So really neva save plenty money. So when 1 went down there,
the union dues was like, 400 dollars I had to pay before 1 could join the union. So 1 was
thinking, okay, so 1 going, 1 call 'em up, I ask 'em if! could, if they could help me out.
They when help me out, pay my dues. I got into the ... to the union. I worked there for
about six months, saved some money. And then I when ask them again if they could me
again for get into the operator's union. So they said, okay. They when help me out get
into the operator's union. And 1 think the biggest thing that. .. this program when do for
me was help me change my way 1 was thinking. They gave me the classes and the tools
that 1 needed for change my way of thinking so that today I can be successful. That's all
1 got for say. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right on.
MR. CABRAL: '" Good evening, Council. My name is Shane Cabral. I, too, am a former
inmate in MCCC. I also went to Halawa, and I also did time in Waiawa, too.
Throughout all my time in prison, I went through a lot of programs. But when I came
back to Maui, I heard about the BEST program. At first, I was hesitant 'cause I didn't
even know what it was about. But then as I got to go and I got to know the people, it was
like, it opened new avenues for success and opportunities for me. Like Murphy Taua, I
didn't have any money very much. They helped me out a lot financially. And when I got
to work furlough, they helped me out a lot with my tools for my job. I, too, work
construction. I'm a roofer, so they helped me out with shirts, clothes, you know, tools,
supplies. They even offered for me to ...uh ... have a vehicle, like bike. They got me a
bike and they also offered the, the services of the MEO bus. But because I work so early
in the morning, that was kind of hard for me to catch the bus because they wasn't
operating then. But ... (end of tape, start 2B) . .. not only financially, but they have also
helped me, like... basically commitment-wise. You know what I mean? With my
family, I was able to repair some of the damages I did...with my friends ...myself
especially, you know what I mean? I was able to look at myself. .. and I was able to see
that, 'eh, you know what. .. maybe it wasn't the way I was supposed to go the first time.
So they gave me a second chance. And that's all we're asking for. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Question for Murphy. Murphy, I'm just so happy that, you
know, to hear your story. It's a wonderful story. What do you do now?
MR. TAUA: Uh, lone-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: What's your job?
MR. TAUA: One heavy equipment operator at Hawaiian Dredging.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: This is a little personal, but do you earn a decent wage? You,
you can live on it?
MR. TAUA: I earn one good wage.
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
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MR. TAUA: ... {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I was going say .. .{inaudible} . ..
ALL: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You know, there's ...there's, there's a little, you know there's a
real concern in our community about a living wage ... and how do we educate our
children so that they can make a living that they can live on in this very expensive place
to live. And I think a program that has motivated you to the point where you do have a
wonderful job and are able to live well--as long as you, you know, don't live crazy--I
think that speaks a lot for our pro, for the BEST program. And, Carrie Ann, I wanna tell
you how proud I am of BEST. And, Shane, you too. I'm sure that roofers don't earn
lousy wages either-AUDIENCE: .. . {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --'cause, so I'm very proud of the program, I'm very proud of
you, too. And I wish you all the best. And it's the kind of thing, I think, we wanna
support. We have a terrible oper, uh ... situation here. It's an opportunity, too, that we
have no employees and yet we have people who don't have a job, a decent job. So this is
an opportunity for us to take people who would otherwise come out of prison and
probably go right back. Do you guys think that's true without the intervention of BEST?
MR. TAUA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And so we need to make BEST and we need to support it.
Carrie Ann, can you tell us a little bit about what's going on at the Ritz-Carlton? I think
I'd like people to know.
MS. SHIROTA: Sure. I was actually gonna invite all of you here--the community as well as the
Council Members. This week Friday, Good Friday, from 7 to 9 p.m., our program is
putting on a theatrical production called "The Queen's Story". And the men and women
prison, through the reading circle, read the story, Hawaii's story by Hawaii's Queen
about the overthrow. And through that story, they had exercises in writing monologues,
relating themes of their incarceration, with the Queen, the hurt, themes of betrayal,
making amends for their past and hope for their future. And the Ritz-Carlton at Kapalua
invited us to participate in their celebration of the arts. And it's this week Friday.
Tickets are being sold at the MACC, 20 dollars for adults, and for seniors and keiki it's
10 dollars. So ... we also would like to thank the community because the community has
been so supportive of BEST. And... the community makes a difference. We all
recognize here on Maui County that members, men and women who are in prison are
members of our family, they are members of our ohana, they're our children ... they're
our grandparents and they're gonua come home. And how do we want people to
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be--more violent, more bitter than when they went in, or with the state of hope and a
change of heart and mind? And I think that the BEST program and these gentlemen here
is a, you know, testament to the strength of.. .in tenus of even a third-party evaluator. So
you know you can actually evaluate the cost effectiveness of our program. Preliminarily,
we're showing recidivism rates of less than 15 percent. Fifteen. And we're spending
approximately 7,000 to 9,000 dollars per person a year. And that's in contrast to the
State spending almost 40,000 a year to incarcerate a person. So, you know, we submit
that building more prisons is not the answer and that there are alternatives. And this is
the best way of building a safer community--is supporting programs like BEST. And we
thank Maui because we are an innovator and all of the islands are looking to us for
assistance to create programs like BEST in their community. So we thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --Carrie Ann.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. . (inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for that. And thank you for both of you for
testifying. Carrie Ann... how long an opportunity do they have to be in the BEST
program?
MS. SHIROTA: Okay, currently because of the Federal Department of Justice guidelines, if a
person is between the ages of 18 and 35 ... that they've committed a Class A or Class B
felony, and they have a minimum sentence of one year or more--but we are looking at
State funding currently... and that would expand to persons regardless of age and if
they've been convicted of a Class A, B, or C sentence. And so that's gonna greatly
expand the number of men and women that we can work with. And through the County
funding, we've provided the halau, the theatrical production to any person at MCCC. So
we're always looking for ways to work with more men and women because there's such
a need in our community for it. And once they're in the program, the commitment was,
initially, a three-year program. But we are actually tracking individuals for up to five
years. And, and these guys know even if, you know, eventually their three years end,
they know they can come and stop by and talk stories with us. And we call upon them.
They come back and they, we hope that they'll be mentors to our men and women who
are coming up because they are the best role models for success.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you to all of you.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... The next testifiers, Dean and Sherri Powell?
· .. Tom Cannon?
NOTE:

Very long pause while Mr. Cannon approached.

MR. CANNON, FROM THE AUDIENCE: ... Good evening. Thank you for being here
tonight.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Cannon continued to approach.

MR. CANNON: . . . Hello. Sorry. Main Street is a comprehensive program providing
assistance to Wailuku, Makawao, Paia, Haiku, and other Maui County small towns. The
program's, program structure provides a volunteer, provides for volunteer independent
professionals to assist the community by working with government agencies to evaluate,
create, and implement a number of definitive plans. In addition, our volunteer structure
and design committee has provided many years of professional design review on behalf
of the community for proposed projects within Maui County small towns--helping to
ensure that growth will be carefully designed and compatible with each town's local
character. There can be no doubt that Main Street. .. the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource
Center has had and continues to have an important positive effect on maintaining Maui's
small towns and the community traditions they exemplify. Over the years, we have won
both National and ... and local recognition for our efforts. Please continue to support the
important work of Tri-Isle Main Street Resource CenterlWMSA with full funding within
the Planning Department's budget. The funds will be well spent in leveraging the
maximum benefit from our volunteers and providing the County with valuable
community-based professional service that is, in practical tenns, unavailable otherwise.
Thank you for continuing to see the tremendous assistance that WMSNTri-Isle Main
Street Resource Center is providing Maui County communities. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Tom. Members, any questions for Mr. Cannon?
· .. If not, thank you, again.
MR. CANNON: Thank you all.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Lori Dodd?
· .. I think she came earlier. Mike Kinoshita?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. .{inaudible} . .. tennis ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Followed by Sandy Freeman.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Kinoshita approached.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Mike, where's the ladies?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... {laughter} . ..
MR. KlNOSHITA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: They didn't wanna come up.
AUDIENCE: ... {applause and laughter} . ..
MR. KINOSHITA: .. .{laughter} . .. Thank you, Council Members. 1. .. I'm not. .. I'm not used
to talking to adults, since I was a teacher for 32 years.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{inaudible} . ..
MR. KINOSHITA: And I was a coach for baseball, soccer, tennis--but I'm only here for tennis
tonight. I'm requesting funds to help with the repairs a Wells Park where there's a junior
program being run and a lot of leagues being run there. Also, for Kahului Community
Center, you know, those courts also are pretty much... the courts are cracked and you
know, it's ... sometimes of a hazard that, you know, some of the ... different groups, they
don't like to play there. You know, certain courts--they'll take a certain court because,
you know, it doesn't have all those cracks and holes there. And Wells Park, there's dips.
So if you know where the spots are, you can win points real easily because there's no
way-ALL: .. . (laughter). ..
MR. KINOSHITA: --you can return the ball. You know? So you know, it's ... but, you know,
we--oh, by the way, my name is Mike Kinoshita, by the way. And ...the, I'd like to
thank you guys, first, for the courts that you are gonna build in West Maui, at the Civic
Center; and the two courts at Kula, hopefully. Because now we can, we can do run ... do
a lot of things with four courts you can't do with two. But with four courts, you can run a
lot of stuff there--junior programs. And you know, I was a junior, I, I coached... the
High School, Baldwin... I coached the juniors, Wailuku Juniors, but I don't do that
anymore. Now, I just play. So I'm here to represent the public. And you know, we
have, when I started playing, there were only three courts in Wailuku; and there were
four courts in Puunene. And nobody knows where those four courts at Puunene are
anymore because it's under all whatever. And ... and we have 14 courts in Central Maui
now. But when I started playing, it was easier to get courts in the' 50s than it is to get
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courts now because, you know, tennis has expanded so much that you know now, before
it was just adults playing tennis and you start playing when you're in high school. You
didn't see little kids playing because there were no junior programs in, you know, on
Maui. But now there are junior programs in Lahaina; there was one in Kihei that kinda
disbanded; there's one in Wailuku; plus all the ... hotels run lessons but. .. for 60 dollars
an hour. Not too many people can afford those. You know, so, you know, we'd like to
get more courts just for the general public because when we ... in the '50s there was no
MIL tennis. Now there are 10 teams in the MIL. And there's 3 in Central Maui. They
take up Wells Park, they take up War Memorial, they take up KCC. Seabury even uses
Wells Park as their home court because they don't have any courts up there. So they,
they have to play at Wells Park. Now we would like to get some more courts in Central
Maui because I know there's gonna be some more high schools being built in Central
Maui. There's probably... Kihei is probably gonna have one. And... you know, where,
where are these ... the population that I see, there's ... gonna be a popUlation of about
40 or 50 thousand in the next. .. 10, 20 years in Central Maui.
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. KINOSHITA: Oops, sorry about that.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
MR. KINOSHITA: Does that mean I have to stop right now?
AUDIENCE: No.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No, no, no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No .. .(inaudible) . ..
MR. KINOSHITA: Oh. Okay. But anyway, you know, they, there's now leagues going on all
the time. There were no leagues in the '50s. Now there's leagues going all year long, all
year round. So you know between the MIL and these adult leagues, where does the
public play? And you notice now there are little kids playing with their parents. And the
parents learn from the kids. It's not the parents teaching the kids. The kids learn first,
and the parents go out and ... (inaudible) . .. now their kids are playing it, it's now
become a family affair. And we need courts so they, so these families can get to play.
They just wanna go on the court. They don't wanna wait two hours before they get on.
So you know, we just reo .. requesting that we cannot keep up. Maui Lani's gonna have a
lot of families coming in. But anyway, thank you very much for your time. Do you have
any questions for me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any--oh ...Member Medeiros has a question for you,
Tom.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mike-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Db, Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --thanks for testifying. Are we gonna be able to attract the
USTA league-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER IN THE AUDIENCE: .' .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --tournaments to Maui like we used to play in, but because
of the reduction of the hotel courts in Kaanapali, they no longer come, I understand.
MR. KINOSHITA: Right. They... see, they could run the adult leagues in.. .in the west side
because you need about 30 courts to run them. And there were, Ritz-Carlton had 10,
Kapalua had 10, Royal Lahaina had 10, plus Civic Center had 5. And you know, you
could ... now, Ritz-Carlton is gone, so that's 10 less. Royal Lahaina is gonna close after
this year, that's another 20 gone. They closed down the Hyatt. No, I'm sorry, they
closed down the Marriott, and Hyatt may be going. So they can't run any tournaments in
West Maui anymore. Now next. .. next month there's gonna, they're gonna run the State
High School tournament at Wailea and Makena, plus--you need 16 courts. There's only
14 there, or 15. So we had to use ... Kalama Park. Now, after they go to Wailea and they
go to Makena and they look at Kalama Park, some of those Honolulu parents have all
kinds of comments to give us. You know, 'cause we run junior tournaments here. We
have, we draw in 200 kids in two tournaments during the year--three, in fact. And so we
have to use...we use Wells Park, War Memorial, we use KCC, we use Maui Sunset, and
we use Kalama Park, plus we use Wailea as our backup. So we use all the ... public parks
in Central Maui, plus South Maui. And if you've ever played tennis at Maui Sunset, it's
on the beach, the wind blows about 40 miles an hour. You have any desk over there,
everything goes. Tables will fly, you kuow. And ... plus, the tourists there think they
own the courts because it's right in front of all the condos. You know? But whether we
can attract something, 30 courts on Maui? I doubt it. You know, Oahu is just glad to get
it because their Central Oahu park is ... you know, they wauna justify that court, so they
have 20 courts all in one place. And they love it. You know? We don't like it because
it's so far from all the hotels. But, you know, it's ... easy to run a tournament if you're all
in one place. Right now, we have, with our parents we have ... shuttle people between
Kahului, Wailuku, Kihei. You know it's ... and if it rains ...that's it. Where do they go?
They fly in from outside island and there's no place to go. And if we have to catch up,
there's not enough courts to catch up. If we had some more courts in Central Maui, we
could probably keep it all here and only use Kihei in case of rain.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thanks, Mike.
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MR. KINOSHITA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mike.
MR. KINOSHITA: Oh, yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi-MR. KINOSHITA: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --Mr. Kinoshita. Thank you for your testimony. You said
that Wells Park needs repair. And then you mentioned another court-MR. KINOSHITA: Kahului, KCC, right here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, right here.
MR. KINOSHITA: Uh-hub.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They need to be-MR. KINOSHITA: Yeah, there, there-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: patched?
Mr. KINOSHITA: --yeah ... well, I, I don't know .. .I've seen their patches at Wells Park. They
cut out of a big triangle right in the middle of the court. Looks like they peeled it off and
they put a slab right on there. So there's cracks all over. If the ball ever hits a crack,
there it goes ... you've lost that ... (inaudible due to interruption)-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So they need to be repaved-MR. KINOSHITA: Repaved or something. They're doing War Memorial this month. But they
haven't, there's no funds for, to fix up ... Wailuku or KCC. So we need some funds to at
least-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How much?
MR. KINOSHITA: --you know patch it. ..

- 49-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council or the County of Maui

April 3, 2007
Kahului Community Ceuter, Maiu Hall

... Uh, I have no ... 1, I know the Parks Department did submit it to the Mayor, the, the
repair. But it was taken out of the Budget. So I, I, I don't know, they probably had an
amount there, but I don't know. They probably had an amount there, but I don't know
what it was.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. KINOSHITA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mike.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I call up the next testifier-AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --we do have a senior that needs to testify because the bus is here.
Members of the community, I'm gonna allow that so that she can catch her bus.
Violet Wallace?
MS. WALLACE, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Thank you.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Wallace approached.

MS. WALLACE: ... Okay. Good evening, Maui County... Council Members .. . (cleared
throat). .. First time I'm talking .. . {laughter} . .. so I'm nervous .. . (laughter) . . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Don't be. Don't be.
MS. WALLACE: I, I'm here-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can you speak into the mic?
MS. WALLACE: Oh, oh, I'm sorry. Can you hear me better now?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes.
MS. WALLACE: Okay. I'm gonna start all over again. Good evening ... to the Maui County
Council Members. My name is Violet Wallace, and I'm here to thank you for supporting
the Maui Economics [sic} Opportunity. It has helped me in so many ways where.. .I
don't even have medical right now 'cause I'm too young to have Medicare, and yet I'm
too young, too ...my, actually my husband... past away nine years ago and I couldn't get
his social security for widow until I turned 60. So now that I'm...my income, it's over
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the, the bracket of Quest, so now .. .(laughter) . .. I can't get any help. So ... uh ... and
this is the reason why I'm here. I want you folks to, please ...to support the MEO 'cause
they're the ones who has helped me a lot. You know, they're the ones who, I have a job
for 15 hours a week. And they also have for prescription for myself. And for medical,
they have their own MEO doctors and... and all that.
. . . And they help me with my...my transportation to go to work and come back.
And ... so I'm so grateful to have them. I really appreciate. And I wanted you folks to
continue with the MEO. And not only that, the personnel. .. they're very helpful, very
kind, caring. And you know, it really feels--I was born on Maui, so we get aloha. Yeah?
So I just am so grateful. And I thank all of you. I hope next time I do a better speech
.. . (laughter). .. Okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. .(inaudible) . ..
MS. WALLACE: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Violet.
MS. WALLACE: God bless you all. Okay. Bye-bye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for Violet?
MS. WALLACE, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Did you have any questions .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: No, now you can go catch your bus.
MS. WALLACE: Oh, okay-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MS. WALLACE: --thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sandy Freeman, followed by... Jane Sakakihara.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Sakakihara approached.

CHAIRPONTANILLA: ... Oh, Jane-MS. SAKAKIHARA: Thank you, good evening-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --you can go first ... (laughter). ..
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MS. SAKAKIHARA: --everybody. My name is Jane Sakakihara. Mike Kinoshita has said
most of what I was going to say as well. And I would like to reiterate. I just had some
numbers. Eight years ago when I stood here before a similar committee, I had appealed
for additional courts at Kahului Community Center and we got those lit courts. Thank
you very much. Since then, War Memorial, Wells ...have been resurfaced. But as Mike
has said, we are experiencing a lot of cracks and dips where it needs more help again.
And .. .in 1999 was ...was when I know we had, like, four leagues and about
20 tournaments a year. We didn't have as many high school teams. This year, now we
have six leagues. We've added a super senior league, of which 60-year-olds can enter,
like myself. And we have eight teams representing Maui in a few months at sectional
championships. So you know we're, we're moving up there with not only the old folks,
but the, the young children as well with the high school teams, the juniors. And it's a
family thing. Tennis is a family thing. And, and it's nice to see the, the youngsters with
their parents, their grandparents, even, you know, and the ... the little babies are passed on
from ... friends to friends. And they get used to, you know ... being with other people.
And...holding a tennis racket, hitting the ball, running around in the courts--good
exercise, lot of cardio vascular, you know, activity for the, for the children. And ...the,
the high school championships is gonna be held here in...next month, as Mike said.
They... are using six courts down at. .. south side, west side ...not "west side". South
side and central area. Whereas, if we had more courts in the Central area, we possibly
would...would have been able to hold all of them, you know, here. And .. .it's, it's,
what, what I'm trying to say is we need to, we need to expand our tennis resources here
in the Central area because we have a lot of growth with new schools, communities.
And .. .it's, we're just growing. So whatever help you can see to spend this way, we
would surely be appreciative ofthat. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jane-MS. SAKAKIHARA: Any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for testifying. I was gonna ask Mike this, but-MS. SAKAKIHARA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --I know you know just as much as Mike-AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --when it comes to tennis.
MS. SAKAKIHARA: ... (laughter) . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What happened to the use of the MCC courts? We used to
play there and, in tournaments before. Is it still in condition for play and for
tournaments-MS. SAKAKlliARA: No, it is not. I, I understand--well, MCC, I, I think that's the Maui
Community-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: College.
MS. SAKAKlliARA: --Center. College-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. SAKAKlliARA: --courts, rather.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. SAKAKIHARA: They are owned, I would think, by the college.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. SAKAKlliARA: And.. .I know ...who's the provost there?
MS. JOHNSON, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Clyde-MS. SAKAKlliARA: Clyde Sakamoto-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeab, Clyde.
MS. SAKAKIHARA: --he's a tennis player. And I, I know he was trying to get that resurfaced,
refurbished for, you know, use. But. . .I think he's the only supporter of tennis at the
college. So ...he's not getting... you know-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it's not-MS. SAKAKIHARA: --anywhere.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --in use right now.
MS. SAKAKIHARA: No, it is--well ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It's not in condition--
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MS. SAKAKllIARA: ... I ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --to be played on?
MS. SAKAKllIARA: Oh, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MS. SAKAKllIARA: Not at alL
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. SAKAKllIARA: Not at all.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That would be two additional courts for-MS. SAKAKlliARA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --Central Maui. You know, maybe-MS. SAKAKllIARA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --we can talk to Clyde.
MS. SAKAKlliARA: That would be nice.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
MS. SAKAKllIARA: And there's more room around there to-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's right.
MS. SAKAKllIARA: --to expand as welL
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Plenty room around there .. .(laughter). ..
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jane. How 'bout Maui High School?
MS. SAKAKlHARA: Maui High School? When I taught there, had two courts only. And
there's no room for any more. So the Maui High School team .. .1 think ... uses KCC, the
four courts at KCC for their practices.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. SAKAKIHARA: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jane ...uh, not "Jane", but Sandy Freeman?
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. .{laughter} . ..
. . . Followed by Nick Hughey.
MS. FREEMAN: ... I'm Sandy Freeman, Executive Director of Maui Adult Day Car Centers.
And I believe I've seen all of you, just about all of you anyway, over this past month.
And... each of you have asked is there gonna be any increase over this last year. And of
course, my answer was "no". And ... so you don't know how hard this is for me to come
and ask for an additional 65,000 dollars for this year. So very briefly, I want to explain
why this increase. And that is we projected with the expense, expansion, as you
know ... of, to the Nisei Veterans site, the inter-generational high-functioning program,
that we would have an increase in numbers. Which we have had far more than we had
ever anticipated. In fact, just this month... March, we have had an additional 13--which
is almost unheard of. And... but of those 13, only 12 are paying private fees. They are
paying, they either need scholarships or they're Medicaid, that kind of things. So we've
met our, our projected goal of numbers and exceeded, but because of the low-income
individuals that are coming in, we are not making our projected budget for the,
the ... private pay. And consequently, we are at a deficit. And we are going to need it to
continue the programs. And so that is the main reason that we are coming to you for this
additional money--is that the, the clients are ... definitely there, it's just that the type of
client, the low income. And we are, we look at the individual very closely. And in many
cases, the, the family or the client pays two days, and then we offer a day or two of
scholarship. So it's not just, in many cases, all freebie, but it's certainly not five days a
week of private pay. And we've noticed this trend more specifically over this last group,
over about the last three, four months that are, are coming in. So we would just like to
say we would like your support of a line item, and if at all possible ... again, it's very hard
to come at this late date and ask for the increase, but we are. I'm burying my pride and,
and asking. And I just wanna say thank you so much for the support that you have given
us and the families and, and the frail elderly and, and .. .individuals with disabilities.
And... so, if you can, just kind of think of what you can do. I do wanna put a little
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footnote here. And that is for MEO transportation. I just wanna say they support us so
much. About 35 percent of our clients would not be eoming to day care if it wasn't for
MEO transportation. So Ijust wanna put a little plug in there for them. So ... thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Sandy. Members, any question? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Hi, Sandy.
MS. FREEMAN: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What is your daily charge?
MS. FREEMAN: 42 dollars a day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. FREEMAN: And we purposely keep that as low as we possibly can. Our cost is about
55 dollars a day. So you could see right there we operate in a deficit on a daily base. But
our families can't afford it. You know, they just can't afford anymore than that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MS. FREEMAN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Sandy.
MS. FREEMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: . . . Thank you, Sandy. And I don't think you should be
embarrassed about coming to ask for help. After all, it's not for you. This will help our
community. I'd like to ask you--about how many clients will benefit or benefit now from
your services?
MS. FREEMAN: Well, at, at this point in time ... and this is just counting one day...we have an
average of about 50 daily at the Kahului facility. We're running 40 a day at the
Nisei--and those are high-functioning, which is like I said, gone beyond expectancies.
And we've been running on an average daily attendance in Lahaina of about 14. And
that facility, even though it's huge, we can only take up to 18 because of the
licensing...the restroom. And we've not pushed the program because of the facility.
But as you know, we're waiting for the CO from ... for Hale Mahaolu. And ... all the
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furniture is in. I think some of you have been up there to see it. It's a beautiful facility.
We will be able to take 28 there. And this is on a daily base. And, like, Kahului is 70
and, and Nisei is 50, but that's on a daily base. So actually we can be taking more clients
because some don't all come five days a week. So ...we are, I, at, at this point we're
looking at well over 200 clients ...to be serviced...maybe not on a daily base, but.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So, essentially, at least 200 families don't have to worry about
their loved ones during the day and are able to go out to work-MS. FREEMAN: Absolutely.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: --and lead their lives because you take care of them. What are
your hours?
MS. FREEMAN: From 7 in the morning 'til 5:30 at night, Monday through Friday. Saturdays
we go from 8:30 to 4:30. Of course, on our survey they ask if we could please stay
open-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. FREEMAN: --until 6. And then we have our sundowning program on Friday nights. And
that goes 'til 8:30 at night. And they would like us to stay open until 10. So, you know
.. .(laughter) . .. and when we open our Lahaina facility, we are going to be starting a
Saturday respite program and see how that goes, like we have it in Kahului, and then may
possibly consider a sundowning program there, too.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: So you're the elder child care.
MS. FREEMAN: We're the elder child care.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. FREEMAN: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
MS. FREEMAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Sandy.
MS. FREEMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier, Nick Hughey.
MR. HUGHEY: ... Aloha, Council and Chairman Pontanilla. First, I, I certainly concur with
Councilman Victorino, you are an attractive bunch.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that.
MR. HUGHEY: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MR. HUGHEY: I'm here tonight on behalf of the Mental Health Association of Maui. We're
requesting partial funding from the County of Maui to help us continue our programs in
the community. Since its founding in 1972, the Mental Health Association's been a
self-supporting agency. Now, I just wanna make a point that we've been open for 35
years ... (end o/tape, start 3A) . .. and proud to say that we've never had to come to the
County for funding. However, we are in... however, we are in a time when there are
more and more agencies competing for the same grants and donations, volunteers are
fewer, and the revenues from the fundraising activities are declining. We receive about
30 percent of our funding from United Way. The rest we raise through grants and
fundraising. We've had three ...we do three big fundraisers a year. We have a big
annual Mayor's dinner, which will be May 4th; our yearly golf tournament, this year will
be June 2nd ; and this year we had a special chicken hekka sale. This coming May, we'll
be again doing our Mayor's dinner and June golf tournament. As much time and work
and staff, volunteers, and board members are able to put into these activities--and I, I
serve as a Board Member--they're still not generating enough revenue to keep our
programs funded. This is why we're asking for your help. The focus of Mental Health
Association on Maui has been bringing quality health services to children and adults
experiencing mental illness. So accomplish this goal, the Mental Health Association
provides a number of final. .. vital services to the community. We provide big...the big
three: we provide education, advocacy, and oversight. In the area of education, the
Mental Health Association sponsors a legislative forum every year where voters can meet
with you and express their concerns to the County, as well as their appreciation for your
positive response to community issues. We also sponsor a special. .. poster contest for
the school children. And we provide, free of service, to the Maui Police Department for
every cadet class ...mental health training. We get volunteers from psychiatrists,
psychologists, nurses, and social workers and do a whole mental health training for
them--which they love and it's a really good program for everybody. In the area of
advocacy, the Mental Health Association gathers input from the community as to where
gaps in services exist and work to alleviate them. For instance, the Mental Health
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Association has been in the forefront of the efforts to reopen the adolescent mental health
unit at the hospital. And they were also big in getting the initial program open ten years
ago. They also track very... very carefully the, the vacancies in the adult and child
mental health centers here and then work diligently to try to work on the State to fill 'em,
and if they need to raise the salaries, et cetera. In the area of monitoring mental health
services here on Maui, a major concern has been voiced in the community now that the
Federal Consent Decree has been resolved by the courts. Mental health services for
adults and children might possibly revolt. .. revert to their previous levels of
insufficiency. A major focus of the MHA is to monitor the quality of adult and child
mental health services. If there's a decline in the quality of services, they will be
documented by the health, Mental Health Association, and we actively campaign. One
example of that, this, just this particular year, without, with, with two or three days
notice, we found out that the Lanai and Molokai child and adolescent crisis workers were
gonna lose their jobs and that those positions were gonna taken away.
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. HUGHEY: Within three days, we were able to mobilize, we were able to contact
legislators, contact department heads and restore that funding and restore those positions.
And so we do really support the whole County. That's just something we do. We're all,
and we're able to mobilize quickly. And lastly what I'll say is that. .. we, in 35 years
we've never... sought funding because we really wanted to keep the separation so that we
could provide oversight. But. . .1, I serve as the Treasurer and I, and I can honestly tell
you, and this is not a veiled threat. If we don't receive County funding this year, there's a
large possibility that our doors will close. I mean, we're running that close to ... of a
deficit. So we really need your assistance 'cause--the last thing I'll say, too, is SHPDA
and Tri-Isle Council said that mental health is a number one health care concern in this
County. And you need that, you have to have that unbiased, unpolitical oversight to
make sure that the services are delivered.
MS. ESPELETA: Four minutes.
MR. HUGHEY: You will get a return on your investment. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Nick.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nick, what is the request from the Association?
MR. HUGHEY: 30,000 dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Anderson?

Thank you.

Member Anderson, followed by.. .if, I, oh,
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... I wanted to know if you put this request through the
Mayor's Office. Is it in her budget?
MR. HUGHEY: ... I think it was in the, I think it's just in the...not in the Mayor's Budget, I
think it's .. .I'm not. .. honestly, I don't know the answer .. .(laughter). .. to that
question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, the Budget that the Council gets is the, is the budget
made up by the Mayor's Administration.
MR. HUGHEY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if it's not in the Budget right now, then we have to put
it in. So I'm trying to find out. .. when you made this request and if maybe the money's
already in the budget. And, and you would know that, I think, if it, if it was. Someone
would have told you-MR. HUGHEY: I don't believe, I don't believe it was. No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Nick.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Board ...

Yeah, for, for your information, Members .. .I do serve on the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .{inaudible} ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... the request hasn't been submitted to the Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, thank you, Nick, again.
MR. HUGHEY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bye.
. . . The next testifier is Bryan Hiromoto, followed by John Duey.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Hiromoto approached.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... {inaudible} . ..
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible). ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Hi.
MR. HIROMOTO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. HIROMOTO: ... Okay. Good evening, Council Members. My name is Bryan Hiromoto,
I am the Research Manager for ABR. We're a research and development company based
in Puunene. We develop agricultural products and pharmaceutical product, materiaL
And... our, one of our agricultural products have been helping the small farmers on
Maui, Oahu, Kauai, and the Big Island. Our...material has increased small farm
production by 30 percent--as far as vegetable production, tomato production, peppers.
And we have recently been shipping material out to California, Mexico, and to Idaho.
During this time, Maui Economic Development Board has been helping us ... and
assisting us in contacting other agriculture companies and giving us support in that
fashion. I'm here on behalf of Maui Economic Development Board to support their
request for funding. I am one of the companies that you'll find in that news, newsletter
on the, center section.
. . . Now we are probably one of the smallest unpublicized companies on the island. And
we've been there, we've been here for about five years--developing materiaL Our initial
funding came from EPA to develop our products. Recently, we've been able to find
more medical asp ... more medical applications to our materials ...where we find that we
may be able to have something for diabetes or for pain relief as welL So we're talking to
some pharmaceutical companies. And Maui Economic Development Board has been
helping us in that area as welL So, again, I would like to say that we support the efforts
of the Economic Development Board, and that they should be funded .. .it through your
Budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Bryan.
MR. HIROMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for Bryan Hiromoto?
... Thank you. And thank you-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I gotta--
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CHAIRPONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I gotta ask this question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead, Mister-MR. HIROMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Curiosity got me. When you say you sbip out materials,
what, what materials do you mean?
MR. HIROMOTO: Oh, we manufacture Maui LCF, which is basically an edible mushroom
digesting pineapple, papaya, and sugar cane molasses. The edible mushroom produces
metabolites from digestion of the fruit juices and these metabolites stimulate plant root
growth. Makes it. .. makes plants bigger, more leaf, more flowers, bigger fruit. So the
Mex ... the Southern California tomato farmers are finding 30 percent more yields;
Driscol Strawberry farmers finding, again, more than 30 percent strawberry production.
And even our local farmers here like Chauncey Monden up in Kula, he's finding that the
strawberries, because of the treatments, are producing more ...two or three months
beyond the normal production life. Even our cabbage growers are producing six to
eight. .. maybe up to nine-pound head cabbages.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Wow!
MR. HIROMOTO: So it gets pretty large.
ALL: .. . (laughter). ..
MR. HIROMOTO: And .. .(laughter) . ..
AUDIENCE: .. . (inaudible) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. . (inaudible) . ..
MR. HIROMOTO: .. . (laughter) . .. we're, we're-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is it organic?
MR. HIROMOTO: It's organic. Certified by HOFA. Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: What do you make it with?
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MR. HIROMOTO: Ah...well, we cook, we bring in the juices from Maui Pine, the sugar cane
molasses from HC&S, and we bring in Big Island papayas. And we cook it up in a
mixture, and we put it into 55-gallon plastic drums. The drums are recycled laundry
drums from the hotels. And we inoculate, we're pure culture of our mushroom. And the
mushroom sits there and digests the drums of juice. We let it sit there for about four
years. And we harvest--it's like making wine. And so the longer you let it sit there, the
stronger it gets. Then we harvest, and we make it, we cook it to kill the mushroom, and
then we simmer it and filter it. And we get this concentrate. So all the farmer need is one
ounce per acre per month.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. . (inaudible) . ..
MR. HIROMOTO: So it's very concentrated and it makes the plant grow faster and it put,
makes more efficient use of fertilizers.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Oh, wow!
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: That is just fabulous.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Where ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNClLMEMBER __ : ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: That's really fabulous-MR. HIROMOTO: Well, if you folks-COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: --and, and-MR. HIROMOTO: --are interested, you should drop by.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, yeah .. .(laughter) . ..
ALL: .. . {laughter} . ..
MR. HIROMOTO: .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: And what's-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --what's really fabulous about it
increasing production without genetically modifying--

IS

you're, you're

MR. HIROMOTO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --anything. Thank you-MR. HIROMOTO: .. . (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --very much.
MR. HIROMOTO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bryan, just. . .I guess a plug for you--I still got that mixture that you
provided-AUDIENCE: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the Lion's Club at our, one of our fundraisers. And I think the golf
course-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --has some samples that they're trying on their grass.
MR. HIROMOTO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, thank you.
MR. HIROMOTO: Okay. Good. Good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) . .. I guess you must be Maui's version of
Miracle Gro.
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MR. HIROMOTO: Uh, well, we put the "miracle" back in Miracle Gro.
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wow!
MR. HIROMOTO: In fact, it works real good with Miracle Gro ... {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Really?
MR. HIROMOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You talk to my wife 'cause she likes to know how to grow
bigger tomatoes, you know what I mean?
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. HIROMOTO: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you .. . (laughter) . ..
MR. HIROMOTO: Okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Bryan.
MR. HIROMOTO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ahh ... this is neat.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Jolm Duey-AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's a hard act to follow, Jolm.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Darla Palmer.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wow, that is neat.

- 65 -

BUDGET AND FIN~"'CE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 3, 2007
Kahului Community Center, Main Hall

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, wow.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .{laughter} ...
MR. DUEY: What am I gonna say after that .. .(laughter) . ..
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. DUEY: Hard act to follow.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Water. Water.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Put water, gotta add water.
MR. DUEY: Yeah, we gotta add water.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{laughter} . ..
MR. DUEY: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and other illustrious Members of the County
Council, the Budget Committee. My name is Jolm V. Duey, a long-time resident,
landowner, and taxpayer, lao Valley.
. . . I'm gonna be testifying as an individual. And you know what I'm gonna be testifying
about. Everybody knows-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. DUEY: --water, particularly Na Wai Eha water. I'm gonna reference some .. .line items.
This is from the proposed... Mayor's Budget and the DWS Budget. On Page 13-8, at the
bottom, United States Geological Survey, there's no money for FY 2008. There should
be 75,000 dollars or more in there for a USGS ... USGS survey for Na Wai Eha streams.
There's money for '06, '07, but nothing for '08. So-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. . (inaudible). .. Mayor's Budget?
MR. DUEY: It's the Mayor's Budget. Yes. This was, been off-line, on-line.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's in there, huh?
MR. DUEY: Page 13-8.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair-MR. DUEY: Office of the Mayor's Budget-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --if! can?
MR. DUEY: --Fiscal Year 2008.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh, I, I believe it's in Office of Economic Development.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't know what you're looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I couldn't find it either, you know.
MR. DUEY: This was ... my wife went to the website and printed it out off the ...website, so
I'm just looking at what this thing says.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Can I see that page for a sec?
MR. DUEY: Sure.
NOTE:

Pause.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... John, you can continue your-MR. DUEY: Okay ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, we, we looking now.
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MR. DUEY: Okay .. . (laughter). ..
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter). ..
MR. DUEY: Page 21-10 of the DWS Budget, which also came off the website, I don't know
whether you have this or not.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. . {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It was in there.
MR. DUEY: Page 21-10, the DWS ...
. . . Budget-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I saw 'em, you know.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah, yeah, I know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I did.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah, I know. Program-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, in the Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Why don't you continue, John, and complete your testimony-MR. DUEY: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and then we'll ask you-MR. DUEY: You can ask me-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --all the questions.
MR. DUEY: Okay, fine.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. DUEY: In this page, one of the goals that DWS--provide for adequate source of potable
water for the County of Maui. Another item is provide for adequate storage facilities to
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serve the County of MauL One of the objectives is to develop surface water. .. surface
water sources to meet demand and develop groundwater sources to meet demand. One of
the performance measures is develop surface water sources, dollar value of
design-encumbered projects is 600,000 for FY '08. I don't know what this 600,000 is
for. Maybe for the water treatment plants for Waiale and Waihee. I'm not sure. This is
on Page 21-10 of the DWS Budget. It was printed off the website.
· .. On Page 21-14 of the same ... ofthe same DWS ...Budget. . .it says one of the goals
is to protect Maui County's water source, resources. And one of the objectives is to, for
Fiscal Year 2008, update long-range capital program to reflect benefit cost analysis of
various source options for Central and Upcountry Maui, including expanding investment
and demand-side source options.
· .. In light of these things, I want to suggest a ...
· .. suggest something. I did get to speak with, one-on-one with Mr. Pontanilla. I did
speak one-on-one with Jeff Eng, the new Water Director. I wanted to speak to some
more of you, we haven't made contact yet, and I wanted to speak one-on-one to explain
my... my scenano.
· .. And basically what it is is to use Waiale reservoir as a large, probably a one billion
gallon storage area. As you know with... Na Wai Eha, with, through Earth Justice trying
to get the stream restoration for Na Wai Eha streams, mauka, makai flow ... once that is
accomplished with the help of the County and... purchasing or conduct, condemnation of
the watershed, that the watershed has to get, has to be put in ... private, public hands.
Sooner or later it's gonna be done.
· .. In the, in the County's water budget, I see 24.7 million dollars in water system
improvements. I'd like to see, what I'm asking for is a, a study, to fund a study... the
water would cost, maybe 200 to 500 thousand dollars to prove me wrong about using
Waiale reservoir for storage. My... figures, I'm not a scientist, I'm not a Ph.D. or
anything like that, but--

MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. DUEY: Okay .. .(laughter) . .. From my-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. DUEY: From my figures, a billion-gallon reservoir would suffice enough water for South
and Central Maui for seven months and reduce pumping in lao Aquifer. .. and help
restore the aquifer for. .. more ... (laughter) . .. pumping later. But something's gotta be
done, that's the bottom line. Something has to be done about the water. You just can't
keep taking water out of the... all the, all the groundwater is gone. We know that.
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They're not "gone", but I mean the pumping ability is to its limits. So know the, the
County is already in the next, this 2000, in the, by 2... 2... 2015, they'll be taking
15 million gallon a day ground, or surface water out of the streams between lao and
Waihee. So ... and by ... (sigh) . .. maybe 2050 they'll be no water. So something gotta
be done. And my, my scenario is get the water restored to the ocean ... take the excess
water. .. storm runoff, and store this water. And then everybody put a straw in the same
big bucket, big pool and take the water out of the same place. Anyway, that's my
testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you-MR. DUEY: That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --John. Just reviewing the ...the Budget that was presented by the
Mayor-MR. DUEY: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and you're right. .. the Mayor, well, for 2008 there's no request. But
the request for 2007 it's still there-MR. DUEY: Yeah-CHAIRPONTANILLA: --that 75,000-MR. DUEY: --70 is still there-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --dollars.
MR. DUEY: --but there's nothing-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
MR. DUEY: --for '08. And that, that's a 3);, year study, and I think USGS is only.. .I think
they're starting the second year of the study. So ...there needs to be some money, put in
a matching funds or help 'cause there's a 1.2 million dollar, 3);,-year study. So ...maybe
you need to, somebody needs to talk to Steve Gingerich or
who USGS, he's
the guy running the study for. . .in fact, he's on Maui this week. They've come up, they
contact me, they come in lao ... (inaudible) . .. they've done stuff on our... property and
they put thermometers in the water and .. . (laughter). .. streams. Anyway, they've been
working on .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you say it's a three-year study starting from 2006?
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MR. DUEY: I believe so. It's a 3 Yz-year study-CHAIR PONTANILLA: 75,000 dollars-MR. DUEY: Yeab.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --each year?
MR. DUEY: Or more.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. DUEY: 'Cause the OHA's putting up some money and the... of course, the Feds are
putting up some money, but there needs to be 75,000 put in there. But I. .. and
furthennore on this ...this study...to .. .1' d like to talk to each one of you one-on-one. I
wanna get through that. I don't wauna step on anybody's toes, that's why I haven't
talked to all of you, but. .. and I haven't approached A&B or anybody about, that owns
the land about it, but to me that's a logical explanation. All the water, all the water from
Na Ha... from Na Wai Eha, except Waikapu, can be put into Waiale reservoir without
too much problem.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you-MR. DUEY: So-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more question for John? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: John, did you talk to Jeff Eng about the 75,000 or-MR. DUEY: No, I didn't know this 'til this Budget came out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeab. You talked to him previous to that?
MR. DUEY: I talked to him about storage right. .. that week after he went in office.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. DUEY: I think he wasn't approved yet ... (laughter) . .. don't think .. . (laughter). .. But,
no, I didn't speak to him about that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John. More questions for John, anyone?
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... Thank you, again, John.
MR. DUEY: Thank you for your time, folks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thanks, Jonathan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Darla Palmer?
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Palmer approached.

MS. PALMER: ... Aloha, Council Chair, Council Members. And mahalo for your great
community service and staying up late with us tonight. My name is Darla Palmer, I'm
Consultant to the lao Theater. And I'd like to talk to you about sweat on a summer
day ... but not tennis ... (laughter) . .. I'm talking about being in the lao Theater. Any of
you that may have attended the Mayoral forum or any of the other popular events at the
lao Theater. .. suffered through a lack of air conditioning, like I did. We've taken the
building as far as we can with ventilation. Lack of air conditioning is severely hampering
the earned income capability of the building. We've lost business. And the building is
virtually unusable during hot afternoons and summer evenings. Further, lack of
operational support for a County-owned community building puts an unfair burden on the
tiny nonprofit that's doing a really exceptional job providing a well-equipped and run
venue for community programs. I don't know if you've noticed, but the lao Theater is
getting busier and busier with community shows. Contractors have confinned that this
project can be done now, before major renovation. So when renovation is done in the
future, it's not gonna be wasted money .
. . . We thought this was a done deal. The prior Administration made a commitment to it.
There was a article in The Maui News, a press release. And I had a chance to talk to now
Mayor Tavares at the end of last year. I think that maybe this slipped out or slipped by
because there's another major issue with the lao Theater regarding the concession law.
And so somehow we, we missed this one. And I'm really asking for your help to get this
back in the Budget. It's just really critical for the ongoing operation of this building.
And basically that's it ... (laughter) . .. We just, you know, we need to do it now. It can
be, it can be done now. Weare hoping to put the building into full renovation at some
point in the future, but this equipment is primarily located in the attic and on the roof.
There's a lovely attic in the lao Theater, I'd love to show you. But it does, that doesn't
affect the renovation. So .. .it's, it's a project that really need to be done. And that would
open up so much more time in that building for the community. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Darla. Urn ... Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, do you have an estimate on the cost?
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MS, PALMER: Yeah, I attached a, a budget page-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 300,000,
MS. PALMER: --it's, it's 300,000, We did have air conditioning contractors come in at the
fonner Mayor's request. And" ,and then we also have estimates for the electrical and
structural engineering and all of the related costs,
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the 300,000 would also include making the building
energy efficient before installing AC? Those old buildings, ' ,are-MS, PALMER: Uh-huh,
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --not made for ACs, I mean, there's a lot ofleaks and-MS, PALMER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --you know, it's not energy efficient. Would that include
insulation and so forth?
MS, PALMER: You're, you're entirely correct. And,. ,and unfortunately, it is not a
super-efficient system, It basically pushes cold air down on people, which is really
typical in these historic buildings, Our company is a member of the League of Historic
American Theaters, and we also researched how it could be done through there, Um, . .in
the, in the future with the renovation, it will be come more efficient and the building will
be sealed, There's vents on the side of the building right now, , ,that's part of the
ventilation system, Those will be closed and sealed, So we, we'll do the best we can to
make it efficient, but, but., ,you know, it is a historic building and we have to work
within certain parameters,
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Darla,
MS, PALMER: Sure,
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Darla, have you been tracking the concessions bill at the
Legislature?
MS, PALMER: I have, and it's doing quite well, ' ,(laughter), " I'm very happy, Thank you--
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COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, good.
MS. PALMER: --for your work. Thank you.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: Just wanted to make sure you knew where it was at.
MS. PALMER: Yeah. I, I'm very pleased to see that 'cause it's such an important project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're gonna be sending testimony-MS. PALMER: 1-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --to the Governor?
MS. PALMER: We, we already have.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. Thank you.
MS. PALMER: Y eah. You betcha.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. PALMER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you, Darla.
Markgraf. .. and Chris Bachaus.
NOTE:

The next testifiers are Fern Mcgraf,

Long pause while Ms. Markgraf and Mr. Bachaus approached.

MS. MARKGRAF: ... Good evening, Chairman Pontanilla and Member of the Maui County
Council. I'm here tonigbt as Principal of Kahului School. And I have my Vice Principal
with me, Mr. Chris Bachaus .
. . . And ... Gladys, I'm sorry, it's not here for MEO, but I do wanna take this time to
thank you in your past job for all the help you folks gave me 'cause I wouldn't be
Principal at Kahului today if it was not for your transportation and your support. Thank
you.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: You're welcome.
MS. MARKGRAF: ... We're here on a whole different issue tonight .. .(laughter). .. And
we're here to ask you for funding ...
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... in the Upcountry, upcoming budget. .. for traffic mitigations ... on South Hina Avenue
and Lono Avenue at Kahului School.
... We need this addressed for the following reasons. Children's safety.. .is the first.
We only have about 25 regular-ed children and maybe 12 special-ed children that ride the
bus. Everybody else is either dropped off. .. or walks to school. And the safety of the
children has reached a critical mass concern for us, or we wouldn't be here. The second
thing that brings us tonight, is just the volume of traffic has so increased...that the
situation has had, where .. .(sigh) . .. traffic, what's his name, Harada...the police put the
things out to test-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The speed?
MS. MARKGRAF: --what people is coming by and the speed is creased [sic}. We do not have
everybody going at 20 miles and hour. So we've got increased volume and we've got
high speed. And the third issue for us ... that brings us requesting this is that in front of
the school. .. and on the side between the school and Maui High there are supposed to be
crossing guards. And those are positions that the County...the Maui Police Department
cannot keep filled. Drive by any morning, and you might see Mr. Bachaus or myself out
there directing traffic and crossing kids because we just cannot keep those positions
filled. That's what brings us here tonight. And the ... sorne of the situation, we think,
could be solved. And Alan Monibog would be here with us tonight if he could,
representing parents with some of the same solutions. We're asking for signage and
flashing yellow lights that let's everybody know ... on Hina Avenue and Lono you are in
a school zone, be careful, slow down, our kids are here. The second thing we're asking
for is raised crosswalks. We have children from 3 to 11 ...our kindergarten and junior
kindergarten now has 4-year-olds walking to school. Most of the 3 and 4 that are in
special-ed preschool are bused. But we have 4-year-old...junior kindergarteners walking
to school. There are mornings that we haven't even been able to see those kids in the
grass on the side of the road ... on the sidewalk opposite the school. It is very different,
difficult with the volume of traffic to see the really small ones.
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MS. MARKGRAF: We are also asking for either speed tables or some kind of speed retardant to
slow the traffic down. And consideration of a left-hand tum lane. We appreciate your
help, your attention to this matter, your assistance. And we invite you to come direct
traffic with us any morning-AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. MARKGRAF: --from 7 to 7:45 or any afternoon from about 1:55 to 2:30 to see the
problem. I wanna personally thank the Council for all the help you gave us at
Haiku School in working with the County property to develop, to address traffic issues
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there between the school and the Haiku Community Center. I appreciate all that help in
the past, and I really hope we can address this situation. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina, question?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Fern. Thank you for coming by tonight and
making us aware of the problem. Urn ... several years ago, I think up by Kalama School
in Makawao ... on Makawao Avenue there's a, there were a couple of accidents. And the
Council, the Public Works Committee, which I chaired at the time, and the Council. .. we
worked with the Department and got a speed... speed table put on Makawao Avenue,
which seemed to address some of the, you know, traffic issues and pedestrians walking
there. Something that might also help to, along with, the Council could consider a budget
appropriation for the speed tables is ... currently Members Medeiros and Victorino chair
the Public Works Committee. And if...maybe through the school, if you could draft a
letter to the Councilor to the Committee and that's something that I'm sure Mr. Medeiros
and Mr. Victorino could take up in their Committee for additional discussions where a
site in... the Council could come up and or the Committee could come up and do a site
inspection as well. So I think that would probably help expedite matters as well in that
area. So I just wanted to let you know about going through that route as well, in addition
to the getting the funding. 'Cause-MS. MARKGRAF: Public Works?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 'Cause I think the Department would have to do some type of
study... traffic mitigation or. .. you know, pedestrian and traffic count as well in that
area-MS. MARKGRAF: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --to implement those devices. So ...that's one route that we
can consider. So-MS. MARKGRAF: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --but thank you for letting, making us aware ofthat issue.
MS. MARKGRAF: And we appreciate that 'cause we have had one child hit on Lono.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and for your information, too, and I think I talked to
you earlier this evening, that the County received 2 million dollars from the State of
Hawaii. And part of the money's gonna be utilized to do some work on Hina Avenue
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itself. So we'll notify Public Works in regards to what you just said tonight. .. to provide
some safety measures at the school when they do the particular project
MS. MARKGRAF: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. . (inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... I was very concerned to hear about lack of a cross, of
crossing guards. Can you tell me how bad that is? You don't have one at all, or you
don't have enough, or they're absent, or what's going on?
MS. MARKGRAF: Do you want me to handle that one?
MR BACHAUS: .. .(inaudible). ..
MS. MARKGRAF: You go ahead.
MR BACHAUS: As the, as the VP at the Elementary School, I open up the milk cartons and
stand in the parking lot a lot And what, what's happened is the two crossing guards on
Hina, we have two places where the kids cross.
. . . Coming down and ... coming up, pretty much. And our one, our one crosswalk is
right a the exit So that, so that creates a jam right there. Yeah? And, and we got some
kids, because of the parking. I'm sure when Kahului was built, it wasn't a...wasn't so
much of a pedestrian, you know, we weren't getting the traffic. So some parents are
cutting .. . (end of tape, start 3B) . .. cutting across Hina this way. Yeah? So what
happens is is if we have a crossing guard, Maui Police can ... can provide for us, he or she
is usually there. The second crosswalk down by the park is .. .is not manned right now
because the person that, that was covering that retired. Okay, so now we have a... a
Maui policeman. Actually, it has been a priority for them. They, they, they've had, had
somebody. But with the, with the flow of traffic and the amount of people, they get
called off to accidents quite often. So even though they're there, they do get calls and
they have to leave us sometimes. Yeah? So on that side, we're, we're really sketchy
where the heavy traffic is. Now on the Lana side, yeah, you got the high school traffic
coming in. You've got a wider, much wider street And the teachers that are back
there-- 'cause I'm usually posted up front--have brought it up at our, our safety committee
meetings that, you know, parents and grand... grandparents a lot pick up. Their parents
will be on the other side of the street and just call the little ones like, chance 'em. chance
'em, come on, you can make 'em.
ALL: .. . (gasp). ..
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh, my goodness.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No.
MR. BACHAUS: Yeah. And it's, you know, it's just, it's kind of a bad situation that needs to
be looked at. Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, I have one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah ... the left-tum lane you're asking about is on Hina,
turning left from Hina into the-MS. MARKGRAF: Into the school.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right-MS. MARKGRAF: It would because what happeus now is the traffic is so heavy coming down
South Hina to get to Lono to turn to Maui High, and the traffic that needs to get into the
school cannot. And it backs everything up.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Yeah, and that crossing guard that retired, that was
my dad. And you know-ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. .(laughter) . .. He-MS. MARKGRAF: Oh, we miss him.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and you know-MS. MARKGRAF: You sure he doesn't wanna come back?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: He's gonna be, he's gonna be 89-years-old .. . (laughter). ..
You know?
AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter). ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible). .. go back to work.
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MS. MARKGRAF: Yeah, and the other crossing guard is on extended vacation in the
Philippines right now. And the one on ...there is a crossing guard between Maui High
and Kahului on Lono, and they can't fill that either.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: My dad ... (inaudible) . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. . (inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Just, just one more-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --question. Urn .. .in, in regards to dropping of the kids, can't they go,
like, say drop' em off at Maui High School parking lot?
MS. MARKGRAF: We are so lucky because 50 percent of our parents are doing that already.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I see.
MS. MARKGRAF: Which, Maui High gets ... kindajammed up 'cause they have to come back
out. But a good half of Kahului parents are already doing that because the front entrance
is so difficult.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and we'll follow up with the Public Works
Department in regards to the concerns of Kahului SchooL Thank you.
MS. MARKGRAF: Thank you. Good evening.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Next testifier is Nancy Johnson.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Johnson approached.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Followed by Iwalani ... Kahalewai Cook.
MS. JOHNSON: . . . Good evening, Council Members. Um ... L .. came back because
Councilman Victorino asked me a question last night and I wanted to bring the
information to you. And so I went to the class. I'm, by the way, for the record I'm the
Allied Health Department Chair at Maui Community College, and I'm here about our
budget request to support expansion of the nursing and the dental program, to renew the
money that you gave us last year. Anyway, I have the class list. This is the class
list. .. of the class that you funded. And you see that of the 39 students, 3 say they're not
going to work on Maui. The other 36 say they are gonna work on Maui. And the other
students, I couldn't get the information 'cause they were at the hospital today. But I will
get that and send it to each of your offices. But I gave you their names because you
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asked about them. And I think if you look at their names, you're gonna see your
neighbors and your friends' children and you're going to see that Maui Community
College nursing program is preparing nurses from the community for the community.
And ... Councilmember Baisa asked about a living wage. And I can guarantee you that
your nursing are making living wages as they take care of you on Maui. So thank you
very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Nancy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Nancy. Iwalani Kahalewai-Cook?
MS. JOHNSON, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Iwalani .. .left.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
MS. JOHNSON, FROM THE AUDIENCE: She's a nursing student who wanted to say thank
you for your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Suzette Robinson?
... Followed by April Gra... Gragas.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Robinson approached.

MS. ROBINSON: ... Chair Pontanilla, Members of the Council. Thank you so much for giving
me the time to speak with you.
As you heard Nancy Johnson speak earlier
and ...repeatedly about the appreciation we have for the support that you gave us last
year for our Allied Health programs ... this year with come in with that repeated request,
but also with the additional request for the alternative energy proposal. The College has
been very involved in looking at ways to reduce our reduction on the dependency of
fossil fuels. I believe Councilmember Medeiros asked about our. ..our. .. tennis courts.
Well, one of the reasons we haven't, you know, taken, used the money for the tennis
courts is because our fossil fuel or our electricity bill has risen over the years to such a
point that, you know, we had to do the basics like pay our electricity bill. You know?
.. .(laughter) . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. ROBINSON: So .. .(laughter). .. so ... our, our proposal is to become a, become a BETA
site for an alternative energy kind of project that we're looking at. Our Chancellor has
been very involved with our community and, and our businesses, looking at
different. .. possibilities. And so this particular proposal asks that we give, get an
opportunity to do that.
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NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Thank you. Questions for the testifier?
... If not, thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: April Gragas?
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Gragas approached.

MS. GRAGAS: ... Okay...1' d like to ask you for your continued financial support for the Maui
Arts and Cultural Center, the MACC, in your upcoming Budget planning. The MACC
plays a critical role in developing and sustaining the arts curriculum in most, if not all, of
our schools here on Maui. Through their programming, student and teacher workshops,
performances, and venues. The fine arts are included in our Hawaii State Standards for
every student. So I feel that supporting the MACC, which does a fabulous job of
supporting our students and teachers in this area, would be money well spent by our
County. Why is arts education so important? Research has shown a compelling link
between arts education and academic and social development. Arts education promotes
literacy skills and problem-solving skills, it develops critical thinking and increases
interest in academic learning. Arts education also exposes children to the dynamic world
of different perspectives and cultures, which encourages them to be a positive participant
in their school community and our society. Thank you for considering this in your
budget. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, April. Members, any questions for the testifier?
... Ifnot, thank you. Karen Fisher?
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Fisher approached.

MS. FISHER: ... Aloha and thank you very much for this opportunity. I know it's been a long
day for most of you, so I'll try to keep it brief. And it's ...what she said .. . {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. . {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's brief ... {inaudible} . ..
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. FISHER: Yeah .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Wow ...
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MS. FISHER: I mean, as you know, our...well, as Pundy always said, arts are education and
that's something that's at the very core of what we do. And it's not only education of
kids, but it's education across the board. We look at the whole range of arts that we do
from our presenting programs, the various artists ... that come not only from Maui and the
State of Hawaii, but from all around the world to come not only to perform at the Center,
but we take them out into the communities and into the schools. We have a Hawaiian
cultural prograrn that is a very significant part of what we do. And that continues to grow
under Hokulani Holt-Padilla's direction.
We work a lot in... actually... Maui
Lani ...will have a new elementary school. And it will be the first arts-integrated school
in Hawaii--which we're very proud of because we don't think that would have happened
without the years of teacher training that the Maui Arts and Cultural Center has done in
this community. Rene Yarna...Rene Yarnafugi will be the Principal. .. and she
has ... she and a lot of the teachers that she's hiring have been through years and years
and years of training at the Maui Arts and Cultural Center. And we are both a resource
and serve on... Suzanna Brown, our Education Director, serves on their advisory
committee. So our, our goal and our...mission is really to be a resource to all of Maui
County--and that includes Molokai, Lanai, and of course Hana which is part of Maui
island but ...
. . . somewhat remote. We also are an economic engine. We take our ability to eam
income very seriously and see that County support--which we've appreciated over the
years .. .is an investment in our ability to ... to leverage that into both earned income and
contributed income. And so we ask...you know, once again for your support to help us
do that.
... Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Nancy [sic}. Members, any questions for the testifier?
MS. FISHER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. FISHER: Thank you .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Bill McKeon?
... Bill McKeon... McKeon?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: He was here .. .(inaudible) . ..
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CHAIR PONT ANlLLA: He was here?
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jan Dapitan?
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Dapitan approached.

CHAIR PONTANlLLA: ... We're almost done, Members ... {laughter} . ..
MS. DAPITAN, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Am I the last ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, you're not.
MS. DAPITAN: Oh .. . (laughter) . .. Good evening, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the
Committee. Community Work Day program has thrived in Hawaii, and particularly in
the County of Maui thanks to you and your support over the years. We are still hoping
and continuing to grow. It's amazing this year, with...Road to Hana project and other
projects like that, we have received so many calls from new people. We have young
people. And I had fears several years ago that our aging volunteer community would not
be replaced or supported with the young people. But I do wauna say tonight that they
are ... coming out. They're coming out for this campaign that we're in the midst of right
now, which is a part of a National Keep America Beautiful, which is the largest volunteer
project in the country. The types of programs and projects are differing and diverse. The
Budget looks the same as it did last year. And I have one little thing in trying not to be
picky or anything, but with our Highway Beautification funding, we lost last year 10,000
dollars--from 180 to 170. And we decided to bite the bullet and try to ... make it without
that. And I just want to ask if you possibly could restore to the 180 level. I've... decided
that 10,000 really makes a difference. We're into ... somewhat of a pinch with a
AmeriCorps team coming in. They cost us a little more this year because we had to
relocate their housing; the transportation to get them to the sites where they are putting in
40-hour work weeks and five days a week for nine weeks ... and doing a tremendous job
at Kanaha Beach Park, tbe Honokowai archeological valley, and the old Maui High
School. Maui High School's demand for security and safety and moving into areas that
we did not intend to get that far, but we've had enthusiastic people working to actually
open up the 23 acres. And now so we have reclaimed more of the campus that we
anticipated. Also that, because of the need for. .. heavier equipment and trucking of the
green waste, we've incurred a little more cost than we figured. So I just thought if
possible, we could go back to those original Highway Beautification Funds that were
secured, at the time, by the Council and with Councilwoman... Charmaine Tavares that it
maybe could be put back in. And that would be my request to you for the year .
... Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jan.
Member Medeiros?

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Jan, for all the work you've done throughout
the years. On the Road to Hana project, it was a terrific job that you did and coordinated
all the different partnerships. We're seeing cars again. What can we do to support it to
get rid of the new cars that appearing?
MS. DAPITAN: Part of that 10,000 would be, definitely, for the removal of automobiles
... {laughter} . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible) . ..
MS. DAPITAN: Because that is one of the things we have dropped back on. We, before we
had...tow companies that were willing to support us, but not 100 percent, you know.
We do have ... a lot of. .. companies and SOS Metals giving us good... good deals, but it
still has a cost factor to get those off the road. So we want to, we want to get 'em off
and .. .I think that would be a big, big help.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Jan.
MS. DAPITAN: Thank you, Bill.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Jan, I have to assume that that 10,000 dollars, did you ask...was
it in the Mayor's Budget? Did you request it?
MS. DAPITAN: When I found out the Budget had been completed, it, I did ... they did tell me it
was the same as last year-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ah-MS. DAPITAN: --which meant it just stayed as the reduction.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Somebody forgot.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So, so somewhere along the line it was missed?
MS. DAPITAN: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. So you need us to put it back?
MS. DAPITAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay, thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just so that we're clear what our job is. Okay, thank you.
MS. DAPITAN: Thank you very much ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jan.
MS. DAPITAN: Yeah.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The last person to testify, Chris Brosius? Brosius.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Brosius approached the podium.

MR. BROSIUS: ... Aloha, Council, and thank you for your persistence in sitting in the hard
seats tonight. My name is Chris Brosius, and I work for, or I am the Coordinator of the
West Maui Mountains Watershed Partnership. Our partnership, for those of you who
don't know, was formed in 1998 by the landowners found within the forest reserve of
West Maui. This includes eight public and private landowners, to which the County is
one. Our mission is to preserve the Native Hawaiian forest that helps provide us all with
many eco-system services, including clean and fresh water in the .. .in the amount of
30 billion gall ... gallons annually. Uh... did that come out right? Thirty billion gallons
annually. This water helps supply 70 percent of Department of Water Supply customers
on Maui.
. . . With a staff of eight, we work hard and help our landowners to work together to
manage nearly 50,000 acres of watershed land. We are supported by grants and in-kind
services provided by the landowners, the State and Federal Government, as well as our
local County government. Today, I'm here to reinforce support for OED Budget
items ... for watershed partnerships, and Department of Water Supply measures to
support natural resource protection. Funds provided could be used by our Partnership to
continue to monitor and respond to watershed threats. Primary threats--as you may have
heard earlier, are feral ungulates ... pigs, goats, deer, cattle that have gone wild. They
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continue to be a problem, but we are gaining on the issue little by little as we take on
more and more land to manage ... as a result, the... of our control work and fencing
initiatives. In Fiscal Year '08 [sic], we maintained 13 miles of partnership fence and
built an additional two miles over precipitous cliffs and what have you in West Maui
mountains. We have maintained five forest health monitoring transects which detect
invasive weeds, animals, and other threats. And beyond that, we are actively looking for
many solutions to many problems including illegal dirt bike use in fragile watershed
lands. We are reaching out to the public through the creation of a website and brochure
materials trying to attend as ...more community events. And we also do things like
mentor AmeriCorps members. And we aspire to do much, much more. And I just
wanted to say thank you very much. Please help us continue these valuable programs and
solidify our ability to provide our island with a sustainable supply of fresh and clean
water. And ... thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this evening?
... Seeing none, thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, that. .. Chris was the last person to sign up for public
testimony. Anybody, anyone out there that wauna provide .. .(laughter). .. provide
public testimony.. .if you could come up-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(inaudible} ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --state your name, organization that represent? And you have three
minutes-COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to provide public testimony .
. . . Mr. Kimura?
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Kimura approached.

MR. KIMURA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Smile, everybody smiling at the end.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(inaudible) . ..
MR. KIMURA: Well, my name is Robert M. Kimura. And I know all of you. Yeah... even
know Mr. Medeiros. I knew his father.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. KIMURA: But I still have to announce myself. I'm Robert M. Kimura-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{laughter} . ..
MR. KIMURA: --and I've been around here for umpteen ages. And .. .I don't wanna take up
your time, so I'm gonna cut it real short. Just gonna say hello to .. Julie [sic], Michelle,
Mr. Medeiros, Jon [sic] Pontanilla.. .I even forgot his name-ALL: .. .{laughter} . ..
MR. KIMURA: --I know his father-ALL: ... {laughter} . ..
MR. KIMURA: --his father's name. Once in a while, a senior. .. senior moments come.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. KIMURA: Yeah. I knew his, I knew his father very well. And Victorino, yes, the golf
course and all that. All right. I going cut it short-ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. KIMURA: Of course, I was asked at the last minute... good thing Tom was here,
Tom ... Cannon. And he gave a very good ... presentation. Mine is just simple. I just
came to say hello to you people, wish you people a good term ... and then... maybe I can
pass on something to you people from experience. One thing I can say, from the, from
the beginning as friends, I would say memorize the Charter. Okay? And get to know the
procedure ... of being effective as much as you can. And we are Wailuku Main Street
Association, the intermediary. Now have you thought about that? We work for you
people. We don't come in to ask for any special favors. Come here just to ... say, again,
we are here to begin to help you people again, especially the new... newly elected
ones--Mr. Medeiros and Mr. Victorino, yeah, and Gladys. They can come to Wailuku
Main Street Association because it's a memory banks that have been keeping all
these ... situations together.
And then one, one big project they been working
continuously on is ... yeah, multi-level parking structure. I can say this much, even I
have ... been with it for, shucks .. .I can't even count the years, 12 years, 13 years,
14 years. Yeah. It's been going on and I think it's at a point where it has to be wrapped
up. And me, of all people, I mean... and it's been, the information is all stacked up here.
I got the answers. Just come to see me. You know? And... the ...the answers are there.
Because I been with it, through the, all that time. You see the, the thing that I, I see most
of the time is ...the Sunshine Law jams everything. That's why if you will, if you'll note,
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I'll be honest with you people, that I don't sign up for any committee membership. Yeah,
there's a contention of-MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. KIMURA: Okay .. . (laughter) . ..
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. KIMURA: I'm gonna cut it short ... {laughter} . .. WelL ..to cut it short, we are here, I'm
here ... asked at the last minute to come here to say hello to my friends. Yeah, because
we've been working for each other. Yeah, that's for sure. I'm here. I'm with Wailuku
Main Street Association because I wanna help you people get your work done .. .in a
way, I mean in the right way. Yeah, person-to-person. Yeah, not going ... (inaudible) . ..
to this party or that party. No. Yeah, the fact still remains that there is a situation to
work on. Even Mike knows. He got into a certain good one last year. And whose idea
was that? A little bit ofmine-MS. ESPELETA: Four minutes.
MR. KIMURA: ... (inaudible) . .. So as an example, Wailuku Main Street Association ready to
act as intermediary for you people. Yeah, especially the new ones. Don't be ashamed.
I'll give you a telephone number, 244-388888 [sic}. Call Jocelyn and shake her up, say
Bob Kimura said-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You gave Jocelyn's number?
ALL: ... {laughter} . ..
MR. KIMURA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's Jocelyn's number.
MR. KIMURA: I don't even have her number now .. . (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kimura-MR. KIMURA: ... how dare you ask me-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Kimura, can you-MR. KIMURA: Okay. I'll cut it short-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --complete your testimony?
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MR. KIMURA: --and I'll wish you folks all good luck, and we'll be working together. All
right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, again.
MR. KIMURA: Don't forget-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. KIMURA: --to help us, now, when we go in and ask. .. please help us at least-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
MR. KIMURA: .. . (inaudible) . .. keep Wailuku Main Street going-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-MR. KIMURA: --so that we can be in position to help you guys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think Member Anderson-MR. KIMURA: Short and sweet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --has a question for you.
MR. KIMURA: What, what kind of question you gonna ask me?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I'm not gonna ask you a question. I'm just gonna make
a comment.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That the MRA... and, and you folks, Wailuku Main Street
could probably oodge them along. But they need to bring a plan to the Council so we can
approve the plan so we can get that parking facility going.
MR. KIMURA: I'm ... gonna give her scolding. In fact. .. may I have an extra-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because the last two plans they brought--
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MR. KIMURA: --extra minute? Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --were not acceptable.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah, I was just thinking about that couple of days back. We all, we have the
answers already. You see? Except for the newly appointed ...
. . . coordinator. .. coordinator. Yeah, yeah. But we have been .. .(inaudible) . .. and the
answers all been... given. We're ready. All they have to do is put that information
together and then come to you people to ask for help and get the procedure to get it out.
Because there are three--may I have another minute?
We have, there are
three ... stakeholders involved. And I am promoting and I'm recommending that they
take care of the County employees who do not have parking spaces at this point. County,
Charmaine is coming in with a million, asking for a million dollars for. .. for architectural
design and, and study to master plan that County area. She's on the right track. Yeah.
And leave that parking space only for parking purposes. Business people one floor.
County people provisional until the County can get their own parking spaces
... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know what I would suggest is that you have the MRA
come up with, maybe, two or three-MR. KIMURA: Yeah,I-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --different alternative plans.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Bring it to the Council-MR. KIMURA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --so the Council can point you guys in the right direction-MR. KIMURA: Okay, Michelle-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and get it going.
MR. KIMURA: --you know why I attend every MRA meeting although I'm not a member, I
don't warma be a member because, I'll be honest with you ... man, man to
woman ... yeah, I don't want that, I don't like the idea of the Sunshine Law. I like a
workship, workshop going so that we can get all the answers together, get the
stakeholders involved, come out with the plan, be satisfied with that to please County,
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FederaL .. employees and State employees. Yeah, we have to accommodate them. And
the business people around there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-MR. KIMURA: So we're gonna do it and I'm gonna give them helL All right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kimura.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah, so ...your, in your request, Michelle, I'll carry the ball for you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Members-MR. KIMURA: You're welcome. Thank you for the extra time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --that concludes our meeting this evening.
MR. KIMURA: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I'll see you guys tomorrow morning at 9 o'clock.
MR. KIMURA: And, and good luck to you people, all right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This meeting is adjourned ... (gavel) . ..
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